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VISION
To be recognised as the most innovative & high quality
managers of health and workplace solutions and a
fantastic place to work.

MISSION
To position the Company as the foremost
provider of services through:
• Continuous improvement of process,
systems and services for our customers
• Becoming the industry benchmark
and advocate
• Provision of the best outcomes for all
stakeholders

To progressively expand the services
offering as opportunities present

To expand our geographical boundaries
outside Australia
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KONEKT
AT A GLANCE
WHO WE ARE
Konekt is a publicly listed Australian
company and the largest private
sector provider of workplace health
solutions. Our focus is on helping
organisations minimise the impact
of workplace injury and related
workplace costs and risks, resulting
in reduced worker's compensation
premiums.
By examining key areas of
an employee's lifecycle and
company's procedures and culture,
Konekt can improve processes
and identify escalating costs or
non-compliance in occupational
health and safety, risk management
and injury management.

44
60
years collective
experience
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offices throughout
Australia

With offices in all capital cities
and regional centres throughout
Australia, Konekt has both the
expertise and reach to service any
organisation, whether it is large
national organisations, with multisites, or a small local business in
regional Australia. We have over
60 years of collective experience
in delivering workplace health
and OH&S services to industry and
the community.
Our clients include major employers
from government, manufacturing,
health, mining, transport, hospitality,
retail and labour hire industries.

Konekt is the largest private sector provider of workplace health solutions services
in Australia. It is currently the third biggest player in this sector with its two largest
competitors being government owned. Konekt is committed to:
• Improving processes
• Removing inefficencies
• Reducing costs
• Improving health outcomes

Darwin
Broome
Perth
Busselton
Albany
Kalgoorlie
Port Lincoln
Whyalla
Port Pirie
Barmera
Adelaide
Mt Barker
Mt Gambier
Bendigo

Ballarat
Geelong
Melbourne
Launceston
Burnie
Hobart
Dandenong
Albury
Wagga Wagga
Merimbula
Canberra
Orange
Wollongong

Sydney
Central Coast
Newcastle
Tamworth
Port Macquarie
Coffs Harbour
Lismore
Gold Coast
Brisbane
Toowoomba
Maroochydore
Mackay
Townsville
Cairns

CBD
Liverpool
Parramatta
Penrith
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KONEKT SERVICES
Konekt’s range of services are tailored to meet our client’s needs.
Konekt Safe

Konekt Recovery

• OH&S Services

• Injury Management Consulting

• Pre-employment services

• Return To Work Services for

• Corporate Health

Physical And Psych Injury/illness

Konekt Response

Employment Konektions

• Early Injury Reporting

• Employability assessment

• Initial Workplace Conference

• Job seeking programs

• Psych Incident Management

• Transferable skills analysis
• Vocational assessment
• Job skills workshop

Konekt containment
• Integrated business solution to
reduce workers compensation cost

Konekt
Safe

Konekt
Response

KONEKTIVA
IT Platform & Database
Management

employment
Konektions
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Konekt
recovery

konekt’s organisational health model

Konekt takes a holistic approach to the various aspects
of a business. We recognise that numerous often isolated
elements are intimately connected in the delivery of a healthy
and productive workforce. By taking an integrated solutions
approach to workplace health, Konekt can help organisations to
control and reduce their costs.
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CARL WOODBRIDGE
Managing Director

MARTIN SPRY
Chairman

managing director’s and chairman’s report

YEAR IN REVIEW
Strategy

Financial Results for 2005-06

We are pleased to advise that we achieved

The 2006 FY was a year of bedding down

As we indicated might occur, our financial

a positive EBITD in the second half of

of acquisitions and responding to market

results for the full year to 30 June 2006 did

$0.4m, bringing the full year EBITD result

conditions that included many of the

not quite meet the Directors’ expectations

to -$0.2m, and positive cash flow into the

ingredients previously predicted. Whilst

and the guidance provided, with a difficult

business of $0.2m.

these conditions provided in many ways a

last quarter undermining the improvement

degree of turmoil, the predicted formalising

in profitability that had been occurring

The Board of Konekt wishes to thank and

and rationalising of national provider

earlier in the year.

congratulate the staff and management for
their strong efforts during what has been

panels was commenced by the insurance
industry and large employers. At the end

The final net result after tax is a loss of $1.5m

a difficult year of change and transition for

of this period Konekt positioned itself well

for the full year on revenue of $30.2m, the

many of them. With the huge changes of

to capitalise on the current and emerging

result for the second half was an improvement

the last year behind us, we look forward to

trends. This has enabled Konekt to continue

with an after tax loss of $0.2m. Previous year

a more stable environment and an exciting

to reposition its traditional core services in

total revenue was $29.3m.

future, making Konekt a great place to

Injury Management and Rehabilitation into

work as well as a profitable business.

the preferred wider market opportunity of a
more holistic professional services offering.
During the year we have expanded our service
lines and secured a wider base upon which
to build a suite of professional services.
We have realigned our vision to fit with
the evolving marketplace and our move
to more holistic professional services in
workplace health.
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We achieved a positive EBITD in the
second half of $0.4m, bringing the full
year EBITD result to -$0.2m, and positive
cash flow into the business of $0.2m

INTEGRATION
During the year, Konekt completed the assimilation of its acquisitions from previous
years, raised additional capital and restructured its banking arrangements, and as a result
strengthened its balance sheet. One off costs of over $0.8m were associated with these
activities, including cost of refinancing, rationalisation of premises, redundancies and
launching the Konekt brand. Of this, only $0.3m was in the second half. We currently
have no further costs of this nature in front of us.
We complete the year with a significantly improved banking facility, a corresponding
reduction in payables and borrowings, all resulting in a far stronger balance sheet than

reduction in payables
& borrowings

a year ago, We have now completed all capital payments and obligations associated
with the acquisitions.

MANAGEMENT & STAFF

The procurement tendering process was

EMPLOYERS

High staff turnover in some areas of our

commenced and for the first time saw

This year we have seen recognition by a

business is a natural consequence of the

an active part assumed by professional

wider audience that in a country with near

opportunities currently available to allied

procurement

new

full employment with candidates and skills

health professionals in a candidate short

dimension to previous methodologies.

in demand, the workplace needs to offer

marketplace.

teams,

adding

a

also

Konekt has fared well in this process.

more to attract worthwhile employees.

affected by the cultural changes caused by

Coinciding with this has been a decline in

Employee welfare is now recognised by

the acquisition process, re-branding and

the number of reported incidents affecting

those employers as a differential in the

general aspects of change as we positioned

traditional referral numbers.

recruitment and retention process.

The challenge over the past year has been

Konekt’s main focus has been on large

We have studied the various features of staff

to accommodate some claims managers

employers where our scale, geographical

turnover and now feel that we are better

with the move away from outsourced case

coverage, service lines and technology offer

placed to identify successful Konekt people.

management to more supportive specific

a unique and attractive package to support

services. In some areas this has affected our

their desire for a consistent approach.

Our

retention

was

Konekt for the future.

Previous issues relating to staff recruitment

skills mix and produced some volatility during

and retention have been addressed and our

the process. With the result of most tenders

This has also been a focus area for Konekt

new initiatives are showing improvements

now known and new service panels in

Containment

and strengthening our culture. We believe

position this should add more stability to the

services are delivering substantial savings

we are well placed to compete for quality

previous fluctuations in volumes of work.

to employers by enhancing their policies

candidates looking for a serious career path.

where

our

consultancy

and procedures, improving process and
We continue to enjoy strong relationships

accelerating meaningful early intervention

INSURANCE INDUSTRY

with our insurer clients and feel well placed

of injured workers. This directly drives their

There has been significant consolidation in

to assist their next move into seamless

premiums down.

previous years and much speculation about

technology integration. This aspect will

the future. Profitability within the workers

produce the additional efficiencies and

Within this group there are companies

compensation and claims management

cost benefits of scale. Konekt is able to

moving away from state based workers

industry is varied particularly in the larger

demonstrate its ability to produce holistic

compensation

states where Insurers effectively act as

solutions and systemic beneficial change not

insurance or the federal Comcare scheme.

claim managers for the state governments.

available from our traditional competitors.

Konekt has developed service lines and

schemes

toward

self

Further consolidation would assist with the

technology to assist and maintain the

efficiencies of large process and we should

employers’ chosen pathway.

not be surprised if this were to occur.
Insurers

and

claims

managers

have

responded to a change in almost every
state government WorkCover scheme
by

re

engineering

process,

installing

new systems and by revisiting their own
methods of work and procurement.
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managing director’s and chairman’s report (continued)

UK & IRELAND
Our UK joint venture has grown through the year and now has a reasonable following in the financial services, London and Lloyds market.
This has underpinned its growth to the stage where it is now self sufficient and will only require funds for significant expansion.
The general insurance market has been undergoing a review of how to best utilise rehabilitation and injury management as they move
away from the traditional adversarial approach. We have secured a number of pilot schemes that have some longevity and current results
are encouraging.
The sales team have expanded their target audience to include large employers identified as embracing rehabilitation in their workforce and
several have been secured during the year.
The Board consider the right ingredients for a long term future exist within the UK marketplace.

OUTLOOK FOR 2006-2007

We indicated that last year would include

SUMMARY

The 2007 FY positioning is one of

a significant increase in our sales and

Whilst the positioning of Konekt has

resumption of growth for Konekt and an

marketing effort to drive further growth.

yet to produce acceptable returns for

opportunity to demonstrate profitability

This occurred in the third quarter, together

shareholders

moving forward. As revenue grows from

with a formal introduction to market

foundations have been built.

current levels, we do not expect to grow

of our holistic service offerings to large

corporate

and

employers. After successful pilots this

profitability will emerge as overheads

offering, underpinned by our technology,

become fully covered. We have previously

is gaining appeal amongst large employers

indicated that, assuming a target total

struggling with a consistent approach

revenue

achieved,

within their business and across all sites.

maintaining the current level of overheads

Our offering is delivering substantial

will produce a very acceptable profit level.

savings to our customers and enhancing

overheads

of

$50m

materially,

p.a.

is

We are succeeding in growing staff

we

believe

Our successes are being credentialed and

with successful recruiting activities both

used in promotional activities.

base has presented some challenges,
however

we

anticipate

As well as growing revenue in 2006-07

for staff that delivers for them personally,

from our current services, and in particular

and encourages them to support our

in the UK joint venture, we have new

corporate objectives.

services and products which are currently
small but are gaining momentum in our

We continue to be successful with the

client base and will provide additional

current cycle of major insurer tenders,

revenue leverage.

recent

volume referrals, measurable growth and
profitability during 2007.

MARTIN SPRY
Chairman

which will probably be complete by the
end of 2006. Over the coming financial

Now that we have put the past acquisitions

year the tender results will flow more

behind us, we are also prepared to look

strongly through into revenue, and we

again at incremental acquisitions from

expect revenue to continue to increase,

the diminishing small competitor market,

particularly in the second half. In addition,

should the right opportunity arise. We

we are achieving some good success in the

do not foresee the need for additional

corporate and self-insurance market with

capital, at this stage, unless we uncover a

traditional injury management services and

significant and compelling opportunity to

our new service lines such as Containment

acquire a significant accretive asset, that is

CARL WOODBRIDGE

and Konekt Response.

consistent with our vision and strategy.

Managing Director

8

the

successes will start to produce higher

domestically and overseas. We also have a
strong focus on providing an environment

solid

Simultaneous change within our customer

their offering to their workforce.

numbers and reducing turnover rates,

that

Client testimonials

“Our business is characterised by intense project start up periods
and rapid employee deployment. Konekt provided both the
regional capability and the central business support necessary
for us to develop a successful partnership. Our relationship with
Konekt is underpinned by open, honest communication and
prompt issue resolution. Konekt’s willingness to work with us,
accept feedback and to challenge its’ own business processes has
lead to improvements in efficiency for both parties and ultimately
reduced our project risk exposures”
SCOTT CATON
Health & Safety Manager QLD/NT/Pacific
Thiess

“Konekt provide professional, efficient and specialised expertise to
NAB’s support for injured and ill employees.
NAB’s strategy for injury management, aimed at minimising the
impact of injuries in the workplace, is underpinned by the integral
role Konekt play as a partner to NAB in the effective and timely
delivery of NAB’s Early Intervention program.“
JANELLE HETHERTON
Relationship Manager, Injury Management, National Workers
Compensation
National Australia Bank
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Review of operations

2006 MILESTONES
1

Achieve revenue and profit targets

2

Achieve national product consistency

3	Retain 100% of major customers and broaden our Organisational Health Services
offering with them
4

Complete Konekt/Inergise Integration

5
Secure our referral lines
		
- on all major insurance panels, and
		
- establish two new channels to grow existing lines
6

Achieve consistent delivery of Quality Standards to excel at core business

7

Successful UK joint venture

8

Konektiva integrated with internal systems and one external platform

9

Agenda to engage and influence key stakeholders in place
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Building On Our Foundations – Realising our Potential
In 2005 – 2006 our continued focus has been on recruiting and retaining the right
people, building and refining our business systems and diversifying our service
offering whilst continuing with geographical expansion throughout Australia.
A sustained focus on these key business drivers has allowed us to expand and
diversify our customer base and in turn achieve key business goals.
This has occurred during a period of significant change in our core service line
industry, workers compensation. Nonetheless the changes have been positive for
the industry and positive for Konekt’s positioning.

Our continued focus has been on recruiting and retaining
the right people, building and refining our business systems
and diversifying our service offering whilst continuing with
geographical expansion throughout Australia.

Our Team

Early on we recognised the need to establish

Konektiva provides ‘real time’ data from

We recognise our people who deliver the

innovative recruitment methodologies to

an individual, local, regional and national

services are our most important asset.

grow our talent base from an international

standpoint at the press of a button. Being

Retaining and recruiting high quality

pool

a web-based system, access to Konektiva is

staff has continued to be a key focus. We

engagement of Talent2 to provide in-house

have put significant time and energy into

recruitment services we now have our own

listening and responding to the needs

database of over 1200 potential candidates

Our customers are also sharing in the

of our team members whilst fostering

for future roles which is growing continuously.

benefits of Konektiva with claims officers,

a high performance culture. Based on

This initiative has been well received with

injury management advisors, state and

feedback and consistent with our overall

increased enquiries from both experienced

national managers from both insurers

aims we have diversified the type of

professionals and new graduates.

and employers accessing and utilising the

of

candidates.

Through

the

possible by remote users.

system. Continued process innovation

work performed, increased secondment

Efficient Business Systems

and the ability to easily tailor the system

and development schemes, introduced

We have seen our investment in technology

to the customers needs has been viewed

employee share options and increased

convert to significant business efficiencies

extremely favourably by our existing and

promotion from within the business.

and a reduction in administrative costs.

new customers and has established us as

As of 1 December 2005 we commenced

the market leader with technology.

opportunities,

refined

performance

Secondment to roles within insurers across

operating on one Information Technology

multiple states along with in house roles

platform, Konektiva. Not only has Konektiva

with large national employers have been

integrated our internal service delivery

welcomed and embraced by our team

systems and financial systems, it has also

members whilst fulfilling our desire to

provided a transparent system in which we

expand our service offering. These roles

can transact with our customers.

The dedication of our operational staff,
flexibility of our Information Technology
system and motivated and committed
corporate support team, has enabled us to
deliver high quality services to our customers

have provided a new depth to the work

and clients in a consistent manner across

available to employees of Konekt.

capital city and regional locations.
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Service Diversification
As a company we are committed to continuous improvement in service
development and delivery. Throughout the year we ‘fine tuned’ our service
offering and delivery. We re-branded our services to encompass four main areas
– Konekt Safe, Konekt Response, Konekt Recovery and Employment Konektions
aligned with the typical employment history of an employee and assisting our
customers to recruit appropriately, train and take care of their workforce.
Our ability to deliver these services in a consistent manner across all forty four locations
has been viewed as highly desirable by our national customers, both employers and
insurers as is evidence by our selection on major insurer occupational rehabilitation
panels and exclusive service provision arrangements with large employer groups.

We re-branded our services to encompass four main areas –
Konekt Safe, Konekt Response, Konekt Recovery and
Employment Konektions aligned with the typical employment
history of an employee and assisting our customers to recruit
appropriately, train and take care of their workforce.

600%
increase in referrals
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2005 – 2006 also saw the launch
Konekt Containment services with cost
savings for customers realised almost
immediately from our intervention.
Konekt Containment is a workplace
integrated business solution to enable
employers to take control of, manage
and minimise their rising workers’
compensation premiums and related
workforce expenses. Containment
significantly
reduces
customers
workers’ compensation costs by using
the intellectual property, resources and
services of the Konekt group to address
the fundamental factors causing
increasing premiums. Containment
customises
effective
business
management
systems
following
specialised consultancy services which
identify the key elements compelling
the organisation’s increasing costs.

We have also focused on Pre Employment
Assessment services via Konekt
Safe. Through the ability to combine
functional, medical and administrative
components of Pre Employment
Assessments our referrals have
increased by 600%. We are now
providing services within the labour
hire, mining, manufacturing and
building sectors. We have built a specific
Konektiva module that allows customers
to book appointments on line and track
the progress of the assessment. This
has reduced the administrative burden
of organising the assessments and has
been very well received by customers
using the system.
Through our newest entity Employment
Konektions we have built a dedicated
unit that focuses on assisting individuals
to obtain new employment when
they are unable to return to pre-injury
duties. During 2005 – 2006 we spent

Review of operations (CONTINUED)

significant time researching the best
methods. Employment Konektions
offers a range of tailored solutions
to meet the needs of the individual
professional services business continuity
of work. These services are now being
offered on a base service fee with a risk
and reward outcome payment.
Our newest service offerings which are
supported by our IT systems signalled
the company’s successful move from a
traditional Rehabilitation provider to a
professional services business.
The introduction of a formalised
business development and account
management team enabled increased
customer
service
and
greater
penetration of the market. These
areas have worked closely with local,
regional and national customers and
played an essential role in maintaining
and growing our customer base.

We were pleased to see the
emergence of formal procurement of
services from insurers and employers
as an important ingredient to
rationalisation of the industry and to
making fundamental change within
the service provider’s market place.
We anticipate further reduction and
removal of inefficient, poor quality
performance, encouragement of
investment and a more professional
approach to industry issues.

Outlook
With the acquisitions completed,
we have continued to focus on
bedding down our core client base
and credentialing ourselves for future
growth. Responding to the needs of
our national and local customers we
will continue to increase our regional
coverage. Further growth will be
achieved through our position on large
national insurer and employer panels.

Industry change saw major insurers
reducing provider panel numbers. Our
national coverage, quality outcomes,
technological and strong relationships
led to our success in placement on the
majority of these panels.
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OUR PEOPLE
Konekt is quickly gaining a reputation for seeking out the
brightest and best. We recognise that there is more to success
than raw intelligence & qualifications, and we work hard to
create an environment that encourages our people to reach their
potential, be multi-dimensional and to participate fully in the
Konekt Service Offering.
Konekt aims to develop a culture based on a high level of innovation,
strong teamwork and utmost professionalism. Konekt believes that
the talent, commitment and experience of its people are central to
developing this culture and continuing growth of the Company.
14

Promoting high performance

Developing our people

A core value of Konekt is the promotion

In 2006, we launched Konekt Academy, a

of professionalism. In line with our goal to

formal and centralised induction, training

be a trusted business partner, we aim to

& professional development forum. This

ensure that our customers experience in

leading edge training program ensures we

working with Konekt teams across all areas

add value to the business and the people

of the company is positive, consistent and

we engage. It is designed to develop our

exceeds expectations. We are investing in

people’s skills in leadership, teamwork and

our teams - promoting robust, trust-based

technical competencies. We believe that

relationships, accountability and results,

there is always something to learn and we

and monitoring outcomes to ensure that

continuously invest in our people through

this goal of consistency is achieved and

structured learning, e-learning, mentorship

sustained through our internal team

and hands-on training.

1

#

we will employ only
the best people

operations and external interactions with
our customers.

Konekt Academy will evolve to embrace
continuous learning for all staff and a
central point of technical competency.

Staying connected
Konekt offers our people the chance to stay connected to the company, their former
colleagues and industry expertise via our Alumni program, which began this year and
has approximately 200 registered members across Australia having been extended to
former employees of acquired businesses. We provide news to our members through
quarterly newsletters.
Our priority for 2007 is to increase the number of business networking opportunities we
offer our Alumni.

2006
Konekt Academy
is launched

200
Konekt Alumni
members

15

Through our UK joint venture Corporé Ltd
we have been able to move our talent
overseas and keep them in our network.

Remuneration and benefits

Overseas & National

Employee Share Option Plan

Konekt regularly reviews external salary

Secondments

The Konekt Employee Share Option Plan

surveys and advice to ensure that employee

Internal mobility is actively promoted and

(ESOP) was introduced this year. It gives

remuneration and benefits reflect local

supported within Konekt. All employees

staff the opportunity to share in the rewards

market terms and conditions.

are offered the opportunity to broaden

of the companies’ success through share

and enhance their skills, by taking on new

ownership. All permanent full time and

opportunities in accordance with their

permanent part time employees are eligible

abilities, potential and aspirations. This is

to purchase shares in a tax efficient manner.

During 2006, Konekt developed a formal
job banding system across all regions. This
allows for improved visibility on equity across
the organisation as all employees are now
classified into one of eight bands depending
on level of experience and responsibility.
Personal performance is rewarded by an
attractive incentive program.
16

improving the “employability” of employees
and their ability to perform different roles
in a changing job environment.
Through our UK joint venture Corporé
Ltd we have been able to move our talent
overseas and keep them in our network.

client testimonials

“From the time of our first referral to Konekt approximately
4 years ago, it has been plainly apparent that Konekt places a huge
emphasis on service delivery at a very high standard.
Throughout my period of involvement with Konekt, I have always
found the management team to have a clear focus on delivering a
service that is linked to our needs.
I am pleased to report that the level and quality of service provision
by Konekt is such that I have enormous confidence in their ability
to deliver excellent outcomes for our clients.
Konekt’s philosophy and service standards are clearly focused on
delivering quality service in the timeframe specific to our needs.
Unlike some other rehabilitation providers, the case managers at
Konekt always provide reports within MCRS’s specified timeframes.
The quality of Konekt’s service delivery to our clients is of an
extremely high standard and will always result in the best possible
outcome for the individual client.”
DAVID WILLIAMS
Manager, Rehabilitation Team
Military Compensation and Rehabilitation Service
Australian Defense Force
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Max Lloyd-jones

martin spry

Stuart Craig
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Carl Woodbridge

Alan Baxter

the BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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the BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

MR MARTIN SPRY
FIAA
Martin is an actuary who is a senior independent consultant to insurance companies and a Director of
a number of private companies. From 1997 - 1999, he was Executive Director of GIO General Limited,
responsible for all of GIO’s general insurance business. Previously, he founded the Computations
Group and led it for 17 years as it became a significant force in insurance technology.

Managing Director

MR CARL WOODBRIDGE
ACII, FCILA, FCLA
Carl is the Chief Executive Officer of Konekt. He is an associate of the Chartered Insurance Institute,
a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Loss Adjusters (UK), a fellow of the Australian Institute of
Chartered Loss Adjusters and a FUEDI European Loss Adjusting Expert. Carl is a founding Director
of Medepartner, one of Konekt’s acquisitions and has extensive experience in loss adjusting and the
insurance industry in Australia and the United Kingdom.

Non-Executive Director

MR ALAN BAXTER
Alan is an experienced executive who spent 35 years in a variety of roles in some of the world’s
largest information technology companies. These included 15 years with IBM, 7 years as Managing
Director of DMR Consulting Australia and 3 years in London as Chief Operating Officer of Fujitsu
Consulting’s worldwide operations. Since retiring from Fujitsu Consulting he was Chairman of Fujitsu
Australia and New Zealand from April 2004 to April 2006 and is a Director of Mincom Ltd.

Non-Executive Director

MR STUART CRAIG
Stuart is a professional CEO/ Director who in the past twenty years has worked in a variety of industries
in both private and public companies. He headed the Coats Patons companies in Australia and New
Zealand from 1991 to 1997, following this he headed the ICI/ Orica explosives group in Asia Pacific.
Over the past six years he has worked extensively in strategic change with a number of business groups
including PricewaterhouseCoopers, CSIRO, and SMAC Group. He currently holds a number of advisory
roles and is CEO of a business in the semiconductor field and chairman of a biotechnology group.

Non-Executive Director

MR MAX LLOYD-JONES
Max is Managing Director of the Lloyd-Jones Meakin Group, a specialist safety consultancy that helps
companies to maximise their internal resources and safety performance potential, and believes that
everyone is entitled to go about their work safely, free of injuries and occupational illnesses. Previously
he spent 20 years with Du Pont, which has long been recognised as a world leader in health and safety.
He held roles in finance, strategic planning, sales, manufacturing, marketing, HR training and project
and regional management. His final role was as a senior executive with Du Pont Company until 1998.
20

Financial report 2006

Konekt limited abn 79 009 155 971

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
In fulfilling its obligations and responsibilities to its various stakeholders, the Board is a strong advocate of corporate governance.
This statement outlines the principal corporate governance procedures of Konekt Limited (“Company”).

ASX CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COUNCIL RECOMMENDATIONS
On 31 March 2003, the ASX Corporate Governance Council released its Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Principles and Recommendations.
The ASX Principles and Recommendations, in conjunction with the ASX Listing Rules, require companies to disclose in their Annual Reports whether their corporate
governance practices follow the ASX Recommendations.
Unless disclosed below, all recommendations have been applied for the entire financial year ended 30 June 2006.
Recommendation 2.1 states that a majority of the Board be independent and Recommendation 2.2 states that the chairperson be independent. At the date of this
report the Board comprises one Executive Director (Managing Director and the Chief Executive Officer) and four Non-Executive Directors, all of whom are regarded
as independent Directors. Mr Martin Spry is a Director of IRM Pty Ltd, a private company that provides website services to the Company. The fees paid for services
to the Company for the 2006 financial year was approximately 3% of IRM’s revenue. The Board does not regard as material professional services provided to the
Company, which amount to less than 5% of the advisor’s or consultant’s revenue in any financial year, and Mr Spry will keep the Board informed of the amount of
fees paid to the Company.
At the start of the financial year, the Company did not follow Recommendation 2.1 as there was an equal number of executive and independent Directors.
Following the resignation of executive Director Mr Paul Molloy in November 2005, the Company had a majority of independent Directors. The Board appointed
three independent Directors, Mr Stuart Craig, Mr Max Lloyd-Jones and Mr Alan Baxter on 19 June 2006.
During the year ended 30 June 2006 the Board comprised of:
Mr Martin Spry
Mr Carl Woodbridge
Mr Peter Landau (resigned on 14 July 2006)
Mr Paul Molloy (resigned on 17 November 2005)
Mr Stuart Craig (appointed 19 June 2006)
Mr Max Lloyd-Jones (appointed 19 June 2006)
Mr Alan Baxter (appointed 19 June 2006)
Recommendation 2.4 requires listed entities to establish a Nomination Committee. During the year, the Company did not have a separately established Nomination
Committee. Given the current size of the Board, the Board considers that this function is efficiently achieved with full Board support, in accordance with the
guidelines set out in the Board’s Charter.
Recommendation 7.1 requires that the Board should establish policies on risk oversight and management. The Board has implemented suitable practices and
procedures, which are consistent with its size and maturity, and during the financial year the Board considered matters of internal control and risk management
on a needs basis. Due to the recent changes to the Board and Committee compositions the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee is currently conducting a
reassessment of risk management and will guide the development of further formal policies where appropriate.

Roles of the Board and Management
The Board has a Charter, which clearly establishes the relationship between the Board and management and describes their functions and responsibilities.
The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and performance of the Company and has overall responsibility for the Company’s development of the
Company’s business, and its corporate governance. However, the Board does not itself manage the business and affairs of the Company.
Responsibility for management of the Company’s business and affairs, within the scope of the framework established by the Board, is delegated to the Managing
Director, who is accountable to the Board.

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board is responsible for setting the straategic direction of the Company, establishing goals for management and monitoring the achievement of those goals.
The key responsibilities of the Board include:
•	Ensuring the Company is properly managed;
•	Appointing and review the performance of the Managing Director;
•	Approving strategy, planning, acquisitions and joint ventures, and major capital expenditure;
•	Arranging for effective budgeting, capital management, financial supervision and monitoring financial performance against the strategic plan and budgets;
•	Ensuring that appropriate audit arrangements are in place;
•	Ensuring that effective and appropriate reporting systems are in place which will, in particular, assure the Board that proper financial, operational,
compliance and risk management controls function adequately; and
• Reporting to shareholders.
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Board Structure
The composition of the Board shall be determined in accordance with the following principles and guidelines:
–	The Board shall comprise at least 4 Directors, increasing where additional expertise is considered desirable in certain areas;
–	The Board should not comprise a majority of Executive Directors; and
–	Directors should bring characteristics which allow a mix of qualifications, skills and experience both nationally and internationally.
The terms and conditions of the appointment and retirement of Directors are set out in a letter of appointment which covers remuneration, expectations, terms,
the procedures for dealing with conflicts of interest and the availability of independent professional advice.
The composition of the Board is reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure that the Board has an appropriate balance of experience and expertise. During the last financial
year the Board sought to enhance the skills, experience and expertise of the Board and conducted a search for three new Non-Executive Directors with the assistance
of an external consultant. In June 2006 Messrs Craig, Lloyd-Jones and Baxter were appointed to the Board, with Mr Peter Landau subsequently resigning.
The Directors in office at the date of this Annual Report are:

NAME AND QUALIFICATION

DATE OF APPOINTMENT

Mr Martin Spry - FIAA

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

29 September 2004

Mr Carl Woodbridge - ACII, FCILA, FCLA

Managing Director

11 July 2003

Mr Stuart Craig – FAICD, B Eng (Hons)

Independent Director

19 June 2006

Mr Max Lloyd-Jones– PNA, FCES, FCIS, FICD

Independent Director

19 June 2006

Mr Alan Baxter– BSc, Dip Ed

Independent Director

19 June 2006

Details on the relevant skills and experience, and term of office of each of the Directors are set out in the Directors’ Report.

Director Independence
Directors are expected to bring independent views and judgement to the Board’s deliberations. In response to the ASX Recommendations, the Board Charter
requires the Board to include a majority of Non-Executive Independent Directors, a Non-Executive Independent Chairman and to have different persons filling the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
In considering whether a Director is independent, the Board has had regard to the independence criteria in ASX Principle 2, including the definition in Box 2.1, and
other facts, information and circumstances that the Board considers relevant.
Mr Peter Landau, is an Executive with Grange Consulting Group Pty Ltd and was a Director of the Company until 14 July 2006. The issue of Mr Landau’s
independence was considered by the other Directors whose unanimous view was that Mr Landau was independent on the basis that fees paid to Grange Consulting
Group were not a material amount of Grange’s revenue. Details of the fees received by Grange Consulting Group from the Company for the provision of Company
Secretarial and corporate services in the financial year ended 30 June 2006 are set out in note 24 to the Financial Statements. Mr Peter Landau resigned from office
as Director and Company Secretary on 14 July 2006.
The newly appointed Independent Directors, Mr Stuart Craig, Mr Max Lloyd-Jones and Mr Alan Baxter, are considered by the Board to be independent.

Meetings of the Board
During the year the Board met 9 times to consider the business of the Company, its financial performance and other operational issues, and in the future will meet
monthly or as required.

Retirement and Re-election
The Constitution of the Company requires one third of the Directors, other than the Managing Director, to retire from office at each Annual General Meeting.
Directors who have been appointed by the Board are required to retire from office at the next Annual General Meeting and are not taken into account in
determining the number of Directors to retire at that Annual General Meeting. Directors cannot hold office for a period in excess of three years or later than
the third Annual General Meeting following their appointment without submitting themselves for re-election. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election by
shareholders, reappointment is not automatic.
Having regard to these matters, Directors have not been appointed for a specific term.
When a vacancy exists, for whatever reason, or where it is considered that the Board would benefit from the services of a new Director with particular skills, the
Board will select appropriate candidates with relevant qualifications, skills and experience. External advisers may be used to assist in such a process. The Board will
then appoint the most suitable candidate who must stand for election at the next general meeting of shareholders. As discussed above, the Board has recently
appointed three new independent Non-Executive Directors who will seek election by shareholders at the November 2006 Annual General Meeting.

Board Performance
The Board reviews and evaluates its own performance and the individual performance of each Director, including the Chairman and Executive Directors. Due to
the changes in Board composition over the year, the Board did not conduct a self evaluation during the financial year. Having regard to the current status of the
Company and its business and the Board’s composition, the Board believes the self assessment approach to performance evaluation is appropriate.
The Company has implemented an induction procedure which allows new board appointees to participate fully and actively in board decision making at the earliest
opportunity. An induction program was conducted for Messrs Craig, Lloyd-Jones and Baxter in June 2006.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
Directors’ Remuneration
The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is different to that of Executives. Executive Directors receive a salary and may receive other benefits.
Non-Executive Directors receive a set fee per annum, in addition to their statutory superannuation entitlements, and are fully reimbursed for any out of pocket
expenses necessarily incurred in carrying out their duties. When reviewing Directors’ fees the Board takes into account any changes in the size and scope of the
Company’s activities.
The Board will review the remuneration and policies applicable to Non-Executive Directors and the Managing Director on an annual basis. Remuneration levels will
be competitively set to attract the most qualified and experienced Directors and senior Executives. Where necessary, the Board will obtain independent advice on
the appropriateness of remuneration packages.
The structure and disclosure of the Company’s remuneration policies for Directors and senior Executives are set out in the Directors’ Report.

Board Access to Information
All Directors have unrestricted access to all employees of the group and, subject to the law, access to all Company records and information held by group employees
and external advisers. The Board receives regular detailed financial and operational reports from senior management to enable it to carry out its duties.
Non-executive Directors are also given the opportunity to meet informally with management and gain a greater understanding of the Company through attendance
at internal company conferences, where appropriate.
Consistent with ASX Principle 2, each Director may, with the prior written approval of the Chairman, obtain independent professional advice to assist the Director
in the proper exercise of powers and discharge of duties as a Director or as a member of a Board Committee. The Company will reimburse the Director for the
reasonable expense of obtaining that advice.

Board Committees
The Board, where appropriate, may establish a number of committees to assist in carrying out its responsibilities in an effective and efficient manner.
The Board Committees assist the Board in the discharge of its responsibilities and are governed by their respective Charters, as approved by the Board. The current
Board Committees comprise:
–	The Remuneration Committee; and
–	The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee.

Remuneration Committee
Among the specific responsibilities set out in its Charter, the Remuneration Committee reviews and makes recommendations on remuneration policies for the
Company including, in particular, those governing the Directors, the Managing Director and senior management. The Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on the Board’s operation and performance; establishes an induction programme for Directors; undertakes a performance review of the Managing Director at
least annually and establishes the goals for the forthcoming year with the Managing Director.
The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year were:
Mr Martin Spry (Committee Chairman)
Mr Alan Baxter (appointed 19 June 2006)
Mr Peter Landau (resigned 14 July 2006)

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
The Board has an Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee. The Committee monitors internal control policies and procedures designed to safeguard Company assets
and to maintain the integrity of financial reporting, consistent with ASX Principle 4.
Part of the role of the Committee is to provide a direct link between the Board and the external auditors.
It also provides the Board of Directors with additional assurance regarding the quality and reliability of financial information prepared for use by the Board in
determining policies or for inclusion in Financial Statements.
The functions and responsibilities of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee are set out in a Charter and include:
•	Oversight of the reliability and integrity of the Company’s accounting policies and financial reporting;
•	Advising the Board on financial reporting and business risks;
•	Monitoring compliance with regulatory requirements;
•	Identifying key risks faced by the Company and ensuring appropriate risk management strategies and insurances are in place;
•	Improving the quality of the accounting function;
•	Reviewing external audit reports to ensure that where major deficiencies or breakdowns in controls or procedures have been identified, appropriate and
prompt remedial action is taken by management;
•	Liaising with external auditors and ensuring that the annual audit and half-year review are conducted in an effective manner; and
• Reviewing the performance of the external auditor, their qualifications and independence.
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The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee reviews the performance of the external auditors on an annual basis and met with them at least twice during the year.
This process continues and nomination of auditors will be at the discretion of the Committee.
The members of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee for the year ended 30 June 2006 were:
Mr Martin Spry (resigned from Committee)
Mr Peter Landau (resigned as Director on 14 July 2006)
Mr Stuart Craig (appointed as Director on 19 June 2006, Committee Chairman)
Mr Max Lloyd-Jones (appointed as Director on 19 June 2006)
The previous Committee Chairman was Mr Martin Spry.
The relevant qualifications and background of Messrs Craig, Lloyd-Jones and Spry are summarised in the Directors’ Report.

Financial Integrity
The Board has policies designed to ensure that the Company’s Financial Statements meet high standards of disclosure and provide the information necessary to
understand the Company’s financial performance and position. The policies require that the Managing Director provides to the Board, prior to the Board approving
the annual and half-yearly accounts, a written statement that the accounts present a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the Company’s financial
performance and position and are in accordance with relevant accounting standards, laws and regulations.

Audit Process
As part of the Company’s commitment to safeguarding integrity in financial reporting, the Company’s accounts are subject to annual audit by an independent,
professional auditor, who also reviews the half-yearly accounts.
Consistent with ASX Recommendation 6.2, the Auditor attends and is available to answer questions at the Company’s Annual General Meetings.

Auditor Independence
The Company has implemented procedures and policies to monitor the independence and competence of the Company’s external auditors. Details of the amounts
paid for both audit work and non-audit services are set out in this Annual Report.
The Board requires that adequate hand-over occurs in the year prior to rotation of an audit partner to ensure an efficient and effective audit under the new partner.
The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee will liaise with the auditors in this regard.

Business Risks
Consistent with ASX Principle 7, the Company is committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated with its business activities and
has embedded in its management and reporting systems a number of risk management controls. The Managing Director is charged with implementing appropriate
risk management systems within the Company.
The Board will monitor and receive advice on areas of operational and financial risk and consider strategies for appropriate risk management arrangements.
Specific areas of risk identified initially and which will be regularly considered at Board meetings include performance of specific activities, human resources, the
environment, Workers’ Compensation legislation, statutory compliance and continuous disclosure obligations.
As part of the reporting process the Managing Director provides to the Board, prior to the Board approving the annual and half-yearly accounts, a written statement
that the integrity of the Financial Statements (as per ASX Recommendation 4.1) are founded on a system of risk management, internal compliance and control
which implements the Board’s policies and the Company’s risk management and internal control system is operating efficiently and effectively in all material
matters.

Share Trading
Under the Company’s share trading policy, all employees and Directors of the Company and its related companies are prohibited from trading in the Company’s
shares or other securities if they are in possession of “inside information”. Subject to this condition and in light of the Australian Stock Exchange’s continuous
disclosure requirements, employee trading can occur at any time, except for Directors and Senior Executives who must comply with specified trading window
restrictions set around the publication of financial results or price sensitive projects.
In addition, in order to trade, Directors of the Company must advise the Chairman or Company Secretary of their intention to trade and must also have been advised
by the Company Secretary that there is no known reason to preclude them trading in the Company’s shares or other securities. The Chairman is also required to
communicate an intention to deal in securities with the Managing Director or Company Secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
Continuous Disclosure
The Company understands and respects that timely disclosure of price sensitive information is central to the efficient operation of the Australian Stock Exchange’s
securities market and has adopted a comprehensive policy covering announcements to the Australian Stock Exchange, prevention of selective or inadvertent
disclosure, conduct of investor and analysts briefings, media communications, commenting on expected earnings, communications black-out periods and review
of briefings and communications. The policy is reviewed periodically and updated as required.
The Company Secretary has responsibility for overseeing and coordinating disclosure of information to the Australian Stock Exchange. The Company Secretary also
liaises with the Managing Director in relation to continuous disclosure matters. The Managing Director is responsible for overseeing and coordinating disclosure of
information to analysts, brokers and shareholders.

Code of Conduct
The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct to establish and encourage observance by the Company’s Directors, Executives and employees of standards of ethical
and responsible decision making and behaviour, and to act with the utmost integrity and objectivity, striving at all times to enhance the reputation and performance
of the Company. All new employees are provided with the Code of Conduct and related policies in induction. The Company has implemented an online compliance
training program which includes all policies, updates and training.

Communications with Shareholders
The Board aims to ensure that shareholders are kept informed of all major developments affecting the Company. Information is communicated to shareholders
through the distribution of Annual Reports; and by presentations to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, which they are encouraged to attend.
In addition, all reports, including quarterly reports and releases made by the Company throughout the year with respect to its activities, are distributed widely first
via the Australian Stock Exchange and then on the Company’s website.

Company’s Website
The Company maintains the website at www.konekt.com.au
The website contains a corporate governance section which includes the Guidelines covering Board Membership, the Charters of the Board Committees,
Policy on Directors and Senior Executives Dealings, Board Code of Conduct, Continuous Disclosure, Communications with Shareholders and this Corporate
Governance Statement.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors present their report together with the financial statements of Konekt Limited (“the company”) and the consolidated accounts of the consolidated entity,
being the company and its subsidiaries, for the year ended 30 June 2006 and the auditors’ report thereon.

Directors
The directors of the company during the financial year and up to the date of this report are:

Name and qualification

Date of appointment

Age

Martin Spry - FIAA

29 September 2004

57

Carl Woodbridge - ACII, FCILA, FCLA

11 July 2003

46

Alan Baxter – BSc, Dip Ed

19 June 2006

61

Stuart Craig – FAICD, B Eng (Hons)

19 June 2006

53

Max Lloyd-Jones – PNA, FCES, FCIS, FICD

19 June 2006

57

Paul Molloy – FCA, FAICD

11 November 2003

47

Peter Landau - LLB, B.Comm

20 December 2002

34

The names of directors who, during the financial year, ceased to be a director are:

Name

Date of resignation

Age

Peter Landau - LLB, B.Comm

14 July 2006

34

Paul Molloy – FCA, FAICD

17 November 2005

47

MR MARTIN SPRY, FIAA – Non-Executive Director
Mr Spry is an actuary who is a senior independent consultant to insurance companies and a director of a number of private companies. From 1997 to 1999 he was
Executive Director of GIO General Limited, responsible for all of GIO’s general insurance business. Previously, he founded the Computations Group and led it for 17
years as it became a significant international force in insurance technology.
Mr Spry is Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
Age: 57
Date of appointment: 29 September 2004

MR CARL WOODBRIDGE, ACII, FCILA, FCLA – Managing Director
Mr Woodbridge is a founding Director of Medepartner, one of Konekt’s acquisitions, and has extensive experience in loss adjusting and the insurance industry in
Australia and the United Kingdom.
Age: 46
Date of appointment: 11 July 2003

MR STUART CRAIG, FAICD, B Eng (Hons) – Non-Executive Director
Mr Craig is a professional CEO/Director who in the past twenty years has worked in a variety of industries in both private and public companies. He headed the
Coats Patons companies in Australia and New Zealand from 1991 to 1997, following this he headed the ICI/Orica explosives group in Asia Pacific. Over the past six
years he has worked extensively in strategic change with a number of business groups including PricewaterhouseCoopers, CSIRO and SMAC Group. He currently
holds a number of advisory roles and is CEO of a business in the semiconductor field and Chairman of a biotechnology group.
Mr Craig is Chairman of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee.
Age: 53
Date of appointment: 19 June 2006
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directors’ report (continued)
MR MAX LLOYD-JONES, PNA, FCES, FCIS, FICD – Non-Executive Director
Mr Lloyd-Jones is Managing Director of the Lloyd-Jones Meakin Group, a boutique consultancy specialising in cultural transformation in which the values of Safety
Health Environment and Sustainability are developed as core value and drivers of business performance. The LJM Group has rapidly grown over the past 8 years
with a particular focus in the resource mining and manufacturing markets. In addition to the LJM Group, he works with a number of private and public companies
in a variety of industry segments. Previously he spent 30 years in a broad range of line management roles in both Australia and internationally. He spent some 20
years with the Du Pont Company, where he held senior executive positions in finance, strategic planning, sales, marketing, human resources and manufacturing,
before being assigned to senior executive global business leadership positions in the core DuPont business portfolio. He left DuPont in 1998 to pursue his personal
business interests.
Mr Lloyd-Jones is a member of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee.
Age: 57
Date of appointment: 19 June 2006

MR ALAN BAXTER, BSc, Dip Ed – Non-Executive Director
Mr Baxter is an experienced executive who spent 35 years in a variety of roles in some of the world’s largest information technology companies. These included 15 years
with IBM, 7 years as Managing Director of DMR Consulting Australia and 3 years in London as Chief Operating Officer of Fujitsu Consulting’s worldwide operations.
Since retiring from Fujitsu Consulting he was Chairman of Fujitsu Australia and New Zealand from April 2004 to April 2006 and is a Director of Mincom Ltd.
Mr Baxter is a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Age: 61
Date of appointment: 19 June 2006

MISS DEAHNE ZANATTA, B Comm, LLB – Company Secretary
Deahne Zanatta is employed with Corporate Compliance Partners, an independent group of professional corporate secretaries who specialise in the administration
and corporate governance of publicly listed entities. Deahne is a qualified lawyer and has previously worked in an advisory capacity at Ernst & Young and Minter
Ellison.
Age: 31
Date of appointment: 24 August 2006

Directors’ Interests in shares and options of the company
The relevant interest of each director in shares and options of the company at the date of this report is as follows:

Fully Paid Ordinary Shares
Director

Direct

Options Over Ordinary Shares
Indirect

Direct

M. Spry

100,000

150,000

200,000

C. Woodbridge

746,000

Nil

800,000

A. Baxter

Nil

Nil

Nil

S. Craig

Nil

Nil

Nil

M. Lloyd-Jones

Nil

Nil

Nil

Mr Woodbridge also has a direct interest in 13 Class B Converting Shares. Mr Woodbridge had a direct interest in 1,506,000 Class A Converting Shares until all
Class A Converting Shares were cancelled under their terms and conditions on 24 August 2006.
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Meetings of directors
During the year, the following meetings were held. Attendances were:

Board Meetings

Director

No. of meetings
held whilst a
Director

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

No. of meetings
attended

No. of meetings
held whilst a
Member

No. of meetings
attended

Remuneration Committee
No. of meetings
held whilst a
Member

No. of meetings
attended

M. Spry

9

9

2

2

2

2

C. Woodbridge

9

9

2

2

0

0

P. Landau

9

8

2

2

2

2

P. Molloy

4

4

2

2

0

0

A. Baxter

0

0

0

0

0

0

S. Craig

0

0

0

0

0

0

M. Lloyd-Jones

0

0

0

0

0

0

Principal Activities
The Group operates in the insurance management sector, principally involved in injury management services.

Operating Results
The consolidated net loss after income tax of the consolidated entity for the financial year was $1,468,340 (2005: $825,264). Revenue was $30,191,300 (2005:
$29,252,266).

Review of Operations
A review of operations of the consolidated entity during the year and subsequent to the end of financial year is contained in the Review of Operations on page 10.

Dividends Paid or Recommended
No amounts have been paid or declared by way of dividend by the company. The directors do not propose to recommend the payment of a dividend.

Significant Changes in State of Affairs
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity during the year.

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year
There are no matters or circumstances that have arisen since 30 June 2006 that have significantly affected, or may significantly affect:
(a) the Group’s operations in future financial years, or
(b) the results of those operations in future financial years, or
(c) the Group’s state of affairs in future financial years.

Likely Developments and Expected Results
The company has now achieved a position of market leadership in the injury management services sector. The synergies arising from prior acquisitions will also be
capitalised on, strengthening the position of the company for achieving operating profitability. The company will, during the coming year, be seeking strong organic
growth both in the insurance sector and also through working with self insured companies.
Further information on likely developments in the operations of the company and the expected results of operations have not been included in this annual financial
report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the company.

Remuneration Report
Directors’ and Key Management Personnel Remuneration
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on remuneration policies and packages applicable to the Board members
and key management personnel of the consolidated entity. The Board remuneration policy is to ensure the remuneration package properly reflects the person’s
duties and responsibilities, level of performance and that the remuneration is competitive in attracting, retaining and motivating people of the highest quality.
To assist in achieving the objectives, the Board links the nature and amount of executive directors’ and officers’ emoluments to the consolidated entity’s financial
and operational performance.
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directors’ report (continued)
Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Managing Director, Finance Director and Key Management Personnel are formalised in service agreements. Each
of these provides for a performance related cash bonus and superannuation. Other major provisions of the agreements relating to remuneration are set out below:
Details of the nature and amount of each element of the emolument of each director of the company and the key management personnel of the company receiving
the highest emoluments for the financial period are as follows:

2006

Base Emolument

Non-cash
Benefits

Options issued

Superannuation
Contributions

Total

$

$

$

$

$

257,233

5,679

6,657

23,150

292,719

79,393

Nil

Nil

7,145

86,538

120,000

Nil

1,664

Nil

121,664

24,000

Nil

Nil

2,160

26,160

Directors
Executive
C. Woodbridge
P. Molloy
Non-Executive
M. Spry
P. Landau
A. Baxter

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

S. Craig

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

M. Lloyd-Jones

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

P. Molloy – Chief Financial Officer

134,968

Nil

Nil

12,147

147,115

B Gunton – Chief Operating Officer

170,610

Nil

Nil

15,568

186,178

Key Management Personnel
of the consolidated entity

Base Emolument

Non-cash
Benefits

Options issued

Superannuation
Contributions

Total

$

$

$

$

$

C. Woodbridge

234,686

7,807

Nil

20,648

263,141

P. Molloy

173,858

Nil

Nil

15,553

189,411

M. Spry

29,002

Nil

Nil

Nil

29,002

P. Landau

24,000

Nil

Nil

2,160

26,160

N. Newbon

46,757

Nil

Nil

Nil

46,757

G. Reynolds

8,027

Nil

Nil

567

8,594

J. Smithies – General Manager

198,024

Nil

Nil

7,879

205,903

B Gunton – Chief Operating Officer

123,463

Nil

Nil

5,792

129,255

2005
Directors
Executive

Non-Executive

Key Management Personnel
of the consolidated entity

There were 1,000,000 Director’s Performance Rights issued during the year, for details refer note 18. No other benefits were granted to directors or key management
personnel during the financial year.
The elements of emoluments have been determined on the basis of the cost to the consolidated entity.
Key management personnel are those directly accountable and responsible for the operational management and strategic direction of the consolidated entity.
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Share Options (Audited)
During the financial year, the company issued 1,000,000 Performance Rights to directors (refer note 18c) as part of their remuneration.
The company also issued 150,000 unlisted options during the financial year.
During or since the end of the financial year the company has issued no ordinary shares as a result of the exercise of options.

Share based options and performance rights
	Options granted over ordinary shares (these options have no voting or dividend rights until exercised):
	As at 30 June 2006 there were 150,000 unlisted options on issue and 1,000,000 performance rights issued to directors.
(i) Performance Rights
		Performance rights were granted under the Executive Option and Performance Rights Plan (‘Plan’) which was approved by shareholders at the 2005
Annual General Meeting. The Plan allows the Company to grant options or rights to selected key employees to acquire ordinary shares in the Company.
Participants are required to satisfy performance and service conditions at the time of the offer.
		The exercise price for performance rights is nil.
		

Rights cannot be transferred and will not be quoted on the ASX.

		A right may only be exercised by a date determined by the Board and will lapse if not exercised at a date determined by the Board not exceeding 10 years,
subject to applicable performance hurdles and other restrictions set in the offer letter. An unexpired option or right will also lapse on a date six months
after a participant dies, retires, is made redundant or becomes disabled, or the date one month after the participant ceases to be employed by the Konekt
group for any other reason.
		

Service Conditions
TrancheNumber

% Available

First Exercise Date

Last Exercise Date

Number of Rights

1

25

17 May 2007

17 May 2011

250,000

2

25

17 May 2008

17 May 2011

250,000

3

25

17 May 2009

17 May 2011

250,000

4

25

17 May 2010

17 May 2011

250,000

100.00

1,000,000

		
Performance Conditions
		Performance conditions are deemed to be an essential component of all senior executive equity incentives. The proposed issue of rights is designed to
provide both motivation to perform and to provide retention incentive. There are two (2) separate performance conditions to be applied to the rights, for
50% of the Tranche weightings, as follows:
		

Performance Condition 1 – 50% of the Tranche weighting – Earnings per Share (expressed in cps)
Tranche

Performance Condition

Threshold
(25% vests)
3

Budget
(50% vests)
4

Target
(100% vests)

1

EPS for FYE 30/6/2006 equals or exceeds

6

2

EPS for FYE 30/6/2007 equals or exceeds

3.3

4.4

6.6

3

EPS for FYE 30/6/2008 equals or exceeds

3.63

4.84

7.32

4

EPS for FYE 30/6/2009 equals or exceeds

3.993

5.324

8.052

13.923 cps

18.564 cps

27.972 cps

		EPS means Earnings Per Share in cents per share (“cps”). EPS is defined as basic earnings per shares (after tax) before any goodwill and/or amortisation,
adjusted for significant items (as noted in the Company’s financial statements), goodwill write-offs which represent more than 5% of the group’s pre-tax
profit for the year; and material capital restructurings that have occurred over the relevant period, as determined by the Board.
		All rights are available up to the last performance measurement date. That is, if a prior year threshold, budget or target is not met, the rights are still
available but prior year rights must then meet a cumulative EPS measure, that is, the sum of the relevant years.
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directors’ report (continued)
		

		

Performance Condition 2 – 50% of the Tranche weighting – Share price escalator
Threshold
(25% vests)

Budget
(50% vests)

Target
(100% vests)

Tranche

Performance Condition

1

Share Price at 30/9/2006 equals or exceeds (1)

$0.70

$1.00

$1.50

2

Share Price at 30/9/2007 equals or exceeds (1)

$0.80

$1.30

$2.00

3

Share Price at 30/9/2008 equals or exceeds (1)

$1.00

$1.60

$2.50

4

Share Price at 30/9/2009 equals or exceeds (1)

$1.20

$1.80

$2.60

(1)	On a five day volume weighted average basis at that date or up to the last available date.

		All rights are available up to the last performance measurement date. That is, if a prior year threshold, budget or target is not met, the rights are still
available but prior year rights must then meet the next year threshold, budget or target level. For example, if as at 30th September 2006, the share price
is below $0.70, none of the rights would vest, none would be forfeited, but all would then be subject to the higher Tranche 2 hurdle, and so on.
		
General Conditions
		Exercise Rights:		Subject to any adjustments in accordance with the Plan Rules and/or the ASX Listing Rules, each Performance Right entitles the
holder to acquire one (1) ordinary share in the capital of the Company on exercise of the Performance Right.
		Exercise Parcels:		Exercise may be in whole or in part, as long as they are in marketable parcels of no less than $5,000.00 worth of shares.
		Timing of Exercises:

Performance Rights, once vested, may be exercised only in accordance with any administrative restrictions as set out in the Plan.

		Other Conditions:

Unless the Board of the Company decides otherwise, the Performance Rights being offered will expire on the earlier of:

							
							

a) the Last Exercise Date (per above); or
b)	a day at the determination of the Board in accordance with the Plan Rules if the participant ceases to be an employee of
the Company; or
c) the day on which a participant defaults hereunder.

							

		Details of performance rights issued in the Company under the Plan to selected participants are set out below.

Name

		

Number of performance rights granted
during the year

Number of performance rights vested
during the year

2006

2005

2006

2005

Martin Spry

200,000

0

0

0

Carl Woodbridge

800,000

0

0

0

Shareholder approval for the issue of performance rights to the above participants was obtained under Listing Rule 10.14.

(ii) Options
		150,000 Options were issued on 27 February 2006. These options will expire three years from date of issue if not exercised. The exercise price per option is $0.55.

		

Service Agreements (Audited)

		

C. WOODBRIDGE – Managing Director

		
		

•	Term of agreement 3 years commencing 22 April 2004.
•	Base salary, including superannuation, amounting to $230,000 to be reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee and increased to $270,000
from 1 September 2004.
•	Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, is equal to the base salary for the remaining
term of the agreement.

		

	P. MOLLOY – Finance Director
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•	Term of agreement 3 years commencing 19 March 2004.
•	Base salary, including superannuation, amounting to $177,000 to be reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee and increased to $225,000
from 28 February 2005.
•	Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, is equal to the base salary for the remaining
term of the agreement.
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B. GUNTON – Chief Operating Officer

		
		

•	Term of agreement 3 years commencing 4 January 2005.
•	Base salary, including superannuation, for the first six months amounting to $137,500 with additional wages payable of $50,000. After the first six
months; base salary, including superannuation will be $200,000 with a bonus payable of up to 30% of base salary for the 2006 year. Said bonus will
be paid based on the operational performance of the company against budgets and business plans.
• Payment of termination benefit in accordance with legislation.

		

		Non-audit Services
		The Board of directors, in accordance with advice from the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee, is satisfied that the provision of non-audit services
during the year is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The directors are satisfied
that the services disclosed below did not compromise the external auditors’ independence for the following reasons:
			
			

•	All non-audit services are reviewed and approved by the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee prior to commencement to ensure they do not
adversely affect the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and
•	The nature of the services provided do not compromise the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and CPA Australia’s Professional Statement F1: Professional Independence.

		The fees for non-audit services are disclosed in note 25.

Environmental Regulations
The consolidated entity’s operations are not subject to significant environmental regulations under either Commonwealth or State legislation.

Indemnification and Insurance of Directors
The company has agreed to indemnify all current directors of the company and former directors of the company against all liabilities to another person (other than
the company or a related body corporate) that may arise from their position as directors of the company and its subsidiaries, except where the liability arises out of
conduct involving a lack of good faith. The agreement stipulates that the company will meet the full amount of any such liabilities, including costs and expenses.
The company has also agreed to indemnify the current directors of its subsidiaries for all liabilities to another person (other than the company or a related body
corporate) that may arise from their position, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good faith. The agreement stipulates that the
company will meet the full amount of any such liabilities, including costs and expenses.
The company has also agreed to indemnify the current directors of its subsidiaries for all liabilities to another person (other than the company or a related body
corporate) that may arise from their position, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good faith. The agreement stipulates that the
company will meet the full amount of any such liabilities, including costs and expenses.
The company has agreed to indemnify executive officers and employees for all liabilities to another person (other than the company or a related body corporate)
that may arise from their position in the company and its subsidiaries, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good faith. The agreement
stipulates that the company will meet the full amount of any such liabilities, including costs and expenses.

Insurance premiums
The directors have taken out a Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance policy but have not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the
premium paid in respect of the policy as such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the contract.

Proceedings on Behalf of Company
No person has applied for leave of Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 to bring proceedings on behalf of the company or intervene in any
proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the company for all or any part of those proceedings.
The company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Corporate Governance
In recognising the need for the highest standards of corporate behaviour and accountability, the directors of Konekt support and have adhered to the principles of
Corporate Governance except as outlined in the Corporate Governance Statement which is contained in the Corporate Governance Statement on page 22.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
The auditor’s independence declaration under section 307C of the Corporations Act can be found on page 66 of this report.
Signed in accordance with a Resolution of the Board of Directors.

MARTIN SPRY
Chairman

28 September 2006
Sydney, NSW
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INCOME STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
Consolidated Entity

Revenues from continuing operations

Parent Entity

Notes

2006
$

2005
$

2006
$

2005
$

4

30,191,300

29,252,266

1,043,375

421,314

(21,604,814)

(20,515,592)

-

-

(2,650,556)

(2,249,818)

-

-

Salaries and employment related costs
Property expenses
External consultants

5

(1,505,448)

(1,956,260)

-

-

Depreciation

5

(1,053,685)

(962,305)

-

-

Communication expenses

(995,267)

(1,032,592)

-

-

Motor Vehicle and Equipment expenses

(807,227)

(522,576)

-

-

Travel and Accommodation expenses

(797,325)

(742,735)

-

-

Finance costs

5

(200,842)

(175,345)

-

-

Share options payments expense

5

(26,480)

-

(26,480)

-

(1,944,349)

(1,894,337)

(158,742)

(293,191)

12

(62,210)

23,777

(37,942)

(142,045)

Write down of investment to recoverable amount

5

-

-

-

(4,295,184)

Write down of receivables from
subsidiaries to recoverable amount

5

-

-

(1,955,117)

-

(1,456,903)

(775,517)

(1,134,906)

(4,309,106)

(11,437)

(49,747)

-

-

Net loss from continuing operations
after Income Tax Expense

(1,468,340)

(825,264)

(1,134,906)

(4,309,106)

Net loss attributable to members of the parent entity

(1,468,340)

(825,264)

(1,134,906)

(4,309,106)

Other expense from continuing operations
Share of net (losses)/profits of associates
accounted for using the equity method

Loss from continuing operations
before income tax expense

Income tax expense relating to continuing operations

7a

Basic earnings per share (cents per share)

6

(3.16)

(2.30)

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share)

6

(3.16)

(2.30)

The above income statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 30 JUNE 2006
Consolidated Entity

Notes

2006
$

2005
$

Parent Entity
2006
$

2005
$

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

8

138,334

848,875

-

-

Trade and other receivables

9

4,255,015

5,069,468

14,589

3,020

Inventories

10

554,873

903,670

-

-

Tax Assets

7b

45,836

193,473

-

-

4,994,058

7,015,486

14,589

3,020

11

440,767

177,557

8,609,058

6,248,585

Investment accounted for using the equity method

12b

6,699

166,481

-

35,512

Other financial assets

12a

-

-

3,270,832

3,270,832

Plant & equipment

13

1,608,682

2,399,021

-

-

Intangible Assets

14

6,522,627

6,522,627

-

-

8,578,775

9,265,686

11,879,890

9,554,929

13,572,833

16,281,172

11,894,479

9,557,949

Total Current Assets
Non Current Assets
Other receivables

Total Non Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

15

3,331,588

4,737,351

-

1,605,114

Borrowings

17

853,626

3,917,551

-

-

Other – Deferred Consideration

15

Total Current Liabilities

-

1,374,702

-

-

4,185,214

10,029,604

-

1,605,114

Non Current Liabilities
Borrowings

17

-

296,475

-

-

Provisions

16

199,503

200,845

-

-

199,503

497,320

-

-

Total Liabilities

4,384,717

10,526,924

-

1,605,114

Net Assets

9,188,116

5,754,248

-

7,952,835

Total Non Current Liabilities

Equity
Contributed equity

18

37,261,453

32,211,383

37,261,453

32,211,383

Reserves

19

26,480

-

26,480

-

Accumulated losses

20

(28,099,817)

(26,457,135)

(25,393,454)

(24,258,548)

9,188,116

5,754,248

11,894,479

7,952,835

Total Equity

The above balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

30 June 2006
$

30 June 2005
$

30 June 2006
$

30 June 2005
$

31,203,516

28,993,128

-

15,908

(31,449,292)

(27,876,970)

(196,685)

(307,383)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Interest paid
Income taxes received/(paid)
Net cash flows
(used in)/from Operating Activities (note 29(a))

20,848

13,110

1,043,375

421,314

(200,617)

(175,345)

-

-

127,194

-

-

-

(298,351)

953,923

846,690

129,839

(377,401)

(1,078,588)

-

-

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of plant & equipment
Proceeds from sale of plant & equipment
Investments in new businesses
Cash acquired on purchase of business

174,078

96,007

-

-

(2,057,770)

(7,523,661)

(1,250,000)

(6,316,016)

-

9,100

-

-

100,000

50,000

-

-

(2,161,093)

(8,447,142)

(1,250,000)

(6,316,016)

Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

5,523,000

5,090,334

5,523,000

5,090,334

Payment of share issue expenses

(472,930)

(188,012)

(472,930)

(188,012)

Dividends received
Net cash flows used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from borrowings

300,000

3,235,372

300,000

-

Repayment of borrowings

(1,300,000)

(2,037,044)

(300,000)

-

Repayment of lease liabilities

(957,195)

-

-

-

Loan to associate

(440,767)

-

(416,560)

-

-

-

(4,230,200)

1,283,855

2,652,108

6,100,650

403,310

6,186,177

Loan from/(to) controlled entity
Net cash flows from Financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held

192,664

(1,392,569)

-

-

Cash at beginning of financial period

(907,956)

484,613

-

-

Cash at end of financial period (note 29(b))

(715,292)

(907,956)

-

-

The above cash flows statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY 
As at 1 July 2004

Issued capital
$

Accumulated losses
$

26,309,061

(25,631,871)

Option Reserves
$
-

(825,264)

Loss for the period

Total equity
$
677,190
(825,264)

Issue of share capital - CWIM acquisition

1,000,000

1,000,000

Issue of share capital - UK Joint Venture

2,200,000

2,200,000

Issue of share capital – Inergise acquisition

2,890,334

2,890,334

Share issue costs

(188,012)

(188,012)

As at 30 June 2005

32,211,383

5,200,000

Share issue costs

(995,430)

Issue of share capital – Share issue costs

5,200,000
(995,430)
(174,342)

300,000

300,000

23,000

23,000

522,500

522,500

Recognition of options issued
Recognition of Director’s Performance Rights

As at 30 June 2006

5,754,248

(1,468,340)

(174,342)

Adjust c/fwd losses for pre-acquisition costs

Issue of share capital – Employee share plan

-

(1,468,340)

Loss for the period
Issue of share capital

Issue of share capital – Conversion of debt to equity

(26,457,135)

18,159

18,159

8,321

8,321

9,188,116

37,261,453

(28,099,817)

26,480

26,309,061

(19,949,442)

-

PARENT ENTITY
As at 1 July 2004

(4,309,106)

Loss for the period

6,359,619
(4,309,106)

Issue of share capital - CWIM acquisition

1,000,000

1,000,000

Issue of share capital - UK Joint Venture

2,200,000

2,200,000

Issue of share capital – Inergise acquisition

2,890,334

2,890,334

Share issue costs

(188,012)

(188,012)

As at 30 June 2005

32,211,383

(24,258,548)

-

(1,134,906)

Loss for the period

7,952,835

(1,134,906)

Issue of share capital

5,200,000

5,200,000

Share issue costs

(995,430)

(995,430)

300,000

300,000

23,000

23,000

Issue of share capital – Conversion of debt to equity
Issue of share capital – Employee share plan
Issue of share capital – Share issue costs

522,500

522,500

Recognition of options issued
Recognition of Director’s Performance Rights

As at 30 June 2006

37,261,453

(25,393,454)

18,159

18,159

8,321

8,321

26,480

11,894,479

The above statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

37

Konekt limited abn 79 009 155 971

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
	This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, Urgent Issues Group Interpretations and the Corporations Act 2001. The financial report is presented in the Australian currency.
	This financial report covers the consolidated entity of Konekt Limited and subsidiaries. Konekt Limited is a listed public company, incorporated and domiciled
in Australia.
	This financial report has been prepared on the basis that the consolidated entity will continue as a going concern. This is dependent upon the achievement of
profitable trading by the consolidated entity in accordance with the director’s expectations.
	The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation
First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
	Konekt Limited and subsidiaries have prepared financial statements in accordance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
(AIFRS) from 1 July 2005. Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the financial report complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
	In accordance with the requirements of AASB 1: First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards, adjustments to the
parent entity and consolidated entity accounts resulting from the introduction of AIFRS have been applied retrospectively to 2005 comparative figures excluding
cases where optional exemptions available under AASB 1 have been applied. These consolidated accounts are the first financial statements of Konekt Limited
to be prepared in accordance with AIFRS.
	The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all years presented. The parent and consolidated entities have however elected to
adopt the exemptions available under AASB 1 relating to AASB 132: Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation, and AASB 139: Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.
	AASB 3: Business Combinations has not been applied retrospectively to business combinations that were affected prior to transition date.
Reporting Basis and Conventions
	The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs modified by the revaluation of selected non-current assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities for which the fair basis of accounting has been applied.

a) Basis of Consolidation
Subsidiaries
		The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of Konekt Limited (“company” or “parent entity”) as at 30 June 2006 and the
results of all of its subsidiaries for the same period. Konekt Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in this financial report as the Group or the
consolidated entity.
		A subsidiary is any entity controlled by Konekt Limited. Control exists where Konekt Limited has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of another entity.
		All inter-company balances and transactions between entities within the consolidated entity, including any unrealised profits or losses, have been eliminated
on consolidation.
Associates
		Associates are entities over which the consolidated entity has significant influence but not control. Investments in associates are accounted for in the parent
entity financial statements at cost and in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.
		Under the equity method of accounting, the Consolidated Income Statement reflects the Group’s share of associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses and
the Consolidated Balance Sheet refects the Group’s share of post-acquisition movement in reserves or equity. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends receivable from associates are recognised by reducing the carrying amount of the
investment in the consolidated financial statements.
		When the Group’s share of post-acquisition losses in an associate exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses unless it
has obligations to, or has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Accounting policies of Associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

	b) Foreign Currencies
		Transactions in foreign currencies of entities within the consolidated entity are converted to local currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction.
		Amounts receivable and payable to and by the entities within the consolidated entity, that are outstanding at the balance date and are denominated in
foreign currencies, have been converted to local currency using rates of exchange ruling at that date.
		The gains and losses from conversion of short-term assets and liabilities, whether realised or unrealised, are included in operating profit as they arise.

38

annual report 2006

c)	Cash and Cash Equivalents
		For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held on call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheet.

	d)	Trade and Other Receivables
		Trade and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible debts and have repayment terms
between 14 and 30 days.
		Collectibility of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for doubtful receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial. The amount
of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

e)	Inventories
		Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost consists of staff salary and direct expenses together with an appropriate level of
overheads.

	f)	Plant and equipment
		Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.
		Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
		
Depreciation
		All assets have limited useful lives and are depreciated using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives, with the exception of finance lease assets
which are amortised over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the consolidated entity will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset.
		Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition.
		The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
		An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (note 1(q)).
		Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the income statement. When revalued
assets are sold, it is Group policy to transfer the amounts included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained earnings.
		The depreciation rates used for each class of asset are as follows:
2006

2005

Plant and equipment

10% to 25%

10% to 25%

Leasehold improvements

15% to 40%

15% to 40%

25%

25%

Leased plant and equipment

	g)	Trade and other payables
		Liabilities for trade creditors and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services
received prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

h) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
		Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office.
In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense.
		Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is included
with other receivables or payables on the balance sheet.
		Cash flows are presented on a gross basis except, for the GST components of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which are disclosed
as operating cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
i)	Revenue Recognition
		Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of credits, trade allowances, duties and
taxes paid. The following recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognised.

		

Rendering of Services
Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customer.

		
Interest
		Interest revenue is recognised when there is control of the right to receive the interest payment.
Dividends
		Dividends are recognised when there is control of the right to receive the dividend payment.
		
GST
		All revenue is stated net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax (GST).

	j)	Income Tax
		The charge for current income tax expense is based on the results of the year adjusted for any non-assessable or disallowable items. It is calculated using
the tax rates that have been enacted or are substantially enacted by the balance date.
		Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Financial Statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss.
		Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply for the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited to
the income statement except where it relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is credited directly against equity.
		Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
		The amount of benefits brought to account, or which may be realised in the future, is based on the assumption that no adverse change will occur in income
taxation legislation and the anticipation that the consolidated entity will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised and
comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.
		Konekt Limited and its 100% subsidiaries have formed a tax consolidated group under the tax consolidation regime. Konekt Limited is responsible
for recognising the current tax assets and liabilities for the consolidated group and deferred tax assets related to income tax losses. Members of the
consolidated entity have entered into a tax sharing arrangement and recognise deferred tax assets and liabilities (other than deferred tax assets relating to
tax losses) and income tax using the stand-alone taxpayer approach. In addition, the agreement provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities between
the entities should the head entity, Konekt Limited, default on its tax payment obligations.

k)	Employee Benefits
		Provision is made for the consolidated entity’s liability for employee benefits arising from the services rendered by employees to balance date. Employee
benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled plus related
on-costs. Other employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made
for those benefits.
		An Employee Share Acquisition Plan was implemented during the year.
Superannuation Plan
		The Group contributes to several defined contribution superannuation plans. Contributions are charged as expenses as they are incurred.

l)	Provisions
		Provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

	m) Segment reporting
		A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different to
those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment and is
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other segments operating in other economic environments.
		Segment revenues and expenses are those directly attributable to the segments and include any joint revenue and expenses where a reasonable basis of
allocation exists. Segment assets include all assets used by a segment and consist principally of cash, receivables, intangibles and plant and equipment, net
of allowances and accumulated depreciation and amortisation. Segment liabilities consist principally of accounts payable, employee entitlements, accrued
expenses, provisions and borrowings.
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Business and Geographical Segments

Business Segments
		The consolidated entity’s business segment is the provision of Vocational Rehabilitation Services predominantly to the insurance industry.
Geographical Segments
		During the period, the consolidated entity’s geographical segment is predominantly in Australia (with the exception of the 50% interest in the UK associate
as outlined in note 12).

n) 	Leased Assets
		Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the substance of the agreement so as to reflect the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership.
Operating leases
		The minimum lease payments of operating leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased
item, are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease period.
		

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the financial year in which they are incurred.

Finance leases
		Leases which effectively transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item to the consolidated entity are
capitalised at the fair value of the leased asset, or if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments and are disclosed as plant and equipment
under lease. A lease liability of equal value is also recognised.
		Capitalised leased assets are amortised over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets and the lease term. Minimum lease payments are allocated
between interest expense and reduction of the lease liability with the interest expense calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease and charged
directly to the income statement.
		The cost of improvements to or on leasehold assets is capitalised, disclosed as leasehold improvements, and amortised over the unexpired period of the
lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is the shorter.

o)	Intangible Assets - Goodwill
		Goodwill and goodwill on consolidation are initially recorded at the amount by which the purchase price exceeds the fair value attributed to its net assets
and contingent liabilities at date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised. Instead,
goodwill is tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill can not be reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

p) Business Combinations
		The purchase method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations. Cost is measured as the fair value of the assets given, shares issued
or liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Where equity instruments are issued, the fair
value of the equity instruments is their published market price as at the date of exchange. Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are
recognised directly in equity.
		Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations are initially measured at their fair values at acquisition
date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill (refer note1(o)).
If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is recognised in the income statement, but only after a
reassessment of the identification and measurement of the net assets acquired.
		Where settlement of any part of the cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in future are discounted to present value at the date of exchange
using the entity’s incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

	q) 	Impairment of Assets
		Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

r) Borrowing costs
		Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
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	s) 	Earnings per share
		Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing the profit from ordinary activities after related income tax expense by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.
		Diluted earnings per share is determined by dividing the profit from ordinary activities after related income tax expense and after preference dividends,
adjusted for the effect of earnings on potential ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares (both issued and potentially dilutive)
outstanding during the financial year.

t) Financial risk management
		The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of
the Group. The Board and in particular the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee monitors and puts in place policies regarding the financial risks posed
to the Group.
			

(a)	The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk and the Group has policies in place to ensure that supplies are only made to customers
with an appropriate credit history.

			

(b)	Prudent liquidity risk management implies sufficient resources being available at all times. The appropriateness of available facilities and current
liquidity position is monitored by both management and the Board.

			

(c)	As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Group’s income and operating cash flows are not materially exposed to changes in
market interest rates.

				The Group’s interest rate risk arises from use of a Debt Finance Facility which has a variable interest rate which exposes the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. This facility is monitored and kept to a minimum at all times so that cash flow interest rate risk is minimised.

	u) 	Accounting Standards Issued but not yet effective
		Certain new Accounting Standards and UIG Interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2006 reporting periods. The Group
does not believe that any of these will have an impact in the financial statements.

2.	CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
	Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may
have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

	Key Estimates - Impairment
	The Group assesses impairment at each balance date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of assets. Where an
impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate
a number of key estimates.
	No impairment has been recognised in respect of goodwill for the year ended 30 June 2006 (refer note 14).
	If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections for the Group was 22.2% instead of 11.5%, the recoverable amount of the goodwill would
equal its carrying amount. Management does not consider a change in any of the other key assumptions to be reasonably possible.

3. DIVIDENDS
	The directors do not recommend that a dividend relating to the year ended 30 June 2006 be paid.
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Consolidated Entity

4.	REVENUE

Parent Entity

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

$

$

$

$

29,997,082

29,155,892

21,453

13,110

-

-

-

-

1,043,375

421,314

From continuing operations
Services
Interest received – other persons
Interest received – controlled entity

-

-

112,310

62,706

-

-

30,130,845

29,231,708

1,043,375

421,314

60,455

20,558

-

-

30,191,300

29,252,266

1,043,375

421,314

1,505,448

1,956,260

-

-

Leasehold improvements

101,239

46,895

-

-

Plant and equipment

809,274

755,164

-

-

Motor Vehicles

143,172

160,246

-

-

1,053,685

962,305

-

-

200,842

175,345

-

-

18,159

-

18,159

-

Other revenue

Other income
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

5.	EXPENSES
The loss from continuing operations
includes the following specific expenses:
External consultants
Depreciation

Finance costs
Interest expense
Share option payment expense
Options issued

8,321

-

8,321

-

26,480

-

26,480

-

2,440,380

1,784,719

-

-

Write down of Investments to recoverable amount

-

-

-

(4,295,184)

Write down of receivables from subsidiaries to recoverable amount

-

-

(1,955,117)

-

Director’s performance rights on issue
Leasing expenses – Operating leases
Lease expenses
Significant Revenue and Expenses

6.	EARNINGS PER SHARE

2006
¢

2005
¢

Basic earnings per share

(3.16)

(2.30)

Diluted earnings per share

(3.16)

(2.30)

46,433,070

35,948,871

Weighted average number of shares used in the
calculation of basic and diluted EPS

	The amount used in the numerator in calculating basic and diluted EPS is the same as the net loss reported in the Consolidated Income Statement.
The calculated diluted earnings per share excludes performance rights and options detailed at note 18.
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Consolidated Entity

7. a) INCOME TAX
Loss from continuing operations

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

(1,456,903)

(775,517)

(1,134,906)

(4,309,106)

(437,071)

(232,655)

(340,472)

(1,292,732)

Tax effect of amortisation

-

-

-

-

Tax effect of write down of receivables

-

-

586,535

1,288,555

(130,287)

(59,177)

(11,382)

(42,614)

-

49,747

-

-

Tax effect of current year losses not recognised

567,358

192,338

(234,681)

46,791

Income tax attributable to ordinary activities

(11,437)

(49,747)

-

-

567,358

192,338

(234,681)

46,791

1,383,515

1,091,602

46,791

-

1,950,873

1,383,515

(187,890)

46,791

The prima facie tax, using tax rates applicable in the country
of operation, on loss from ordinary activities reconciles to the
income tax provided in the Financial Statements as follows:

Prima facie tax benefit at 30%

Tax effect of timing differences not brought to account
Tax effect of shares of net profit of associates

Income tax losses
Future income tax benefits arising from tax losses of the company
have not been brought to account at balance date as realisation
of the benefit is not regarded as virtually certain.

Revenue losses
- current year
- prior years

The potential future income tax benefit will only be obtained if:
(i) the company derives future assessable income of a nature and an amount sufficient to enable the benefit from the deductions to be realised;
(ii) conditions for deductibility imposed by the law are complied with; and
(iii) no changes in income tax legislation adversely affect the realisation of the benefits from the deductions.
Prior year tax losses relating to the Group’s previous activities have been lost as a result of the change in business and are not included in the amounts disclosed
above for future income tax benefits.

Tax consolidation
For the purposes of income taxation, Konekt Limited and its 100% owned subsidiaries have formed a tax consolidated group. Members of the group have entered
into tax sharing agreements in order to allocate income tax expense to the relevant entity on a pro-rata basis. In addition, the agreement provides for the allocation
of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax obligations. At the balance date the possibility of default is remote. The head
entity of the tax consolidated group is Konekt Limited. Konekt Limited has formally notified the Australian Taxation Office of its adoption of the tax consolidation
regime. The company is currently evaluating the availability of tax losses to the group, which may result in a variation of tax losses not brought to account.
There were no franking credits available as at 30 June 2006.
Consolidated Entity
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Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

7.	b) TAX ASSETS

$

$

$

$

	Tax Refund due

45,836

193,473

-

-

45,836

193,473

-

-
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Consolidated Entity

8.	CASH ASSETS

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

Cash at bank

126,671

833,078

-

-

Cash on hand

11,663

2,981

-

-

-

12,816

-

-

138,334

848,875

-

-

4,192,931

4,916,589

-

-

(189,051)

(285,006)

-

-

4,003,880

4,631,583

-

-

Call deposits

9.	TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade debtors
Less Provision for doubtful debts

Prepayments

103,900

99,923

14,589

3,020

Other debtors

147,235

337,962

-

-

4,255,015

5,069,468

14,589

3,020

554,873

903,670

-

-

554,873

903,670

-

-

440,767

177,557

416,560

177,557

Amounts due from subsidiaries

-

-

21,045,965

16,969,378

Write down to receivable amount (note ii)

-

-

(12,853,467)

(10,898,350)

-

-

8,192,498

6,071,028

440,767

177,557

8,609,058

6,248,585

10.	INVENTORIES (CURRENT)
Work in progress

11.	RECEIVABLES (NON CURRENT)
Other debtors (note i)

(i)	This represents a loan to the UK Joint Venture, Corpore
Limited which is for an indefinite term. Interest is accrued at a
margin above the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate calculated
on a quarterly basis.
(ii)	Amounts due from subsidiaries have been written down to
their recoverable amount based on the underlying net assets
of the subsidiaries.
(iii)	All loans due from subsidiaries have the same fair value as
carrying value based on discounted cash flows.
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Consolidated Entity

12.	OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON CURRENT)

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

A) Subsidiaries (see note 29)
Unlisted shares – at cost

-

-

7,566,016

7,566,016

Write down to recoverable amount being value of net assets

-

-

(4,295,184)

(4,295,184)

-

-

3,270,832

3,270,832

2

177,559

-

177,557

6,697

(11,078)

-

(142,045)

6,699

166,481

-

35,512

(62,210)

23,777

(37,942)

(142,045)

-

(49,747)

-

-

Share of associate’s (loss)/profit from ordinary activities
after income tax

(62,210)

(25,970)

(37,942)

(142,045)

Share of associate’s retained profit at beginning
ofthe financial year

(11,078)

64,892

(142,045)

-

(100,000)

(50,000)

-

-

179,987

-

179,987

-

6,699

(11,078)

-

(142,045)

B)	Investments accounted for using the equity method
	At cost
Share of accumulated earnings

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Factor One Pty Ltd (50% ownership, its principal activity is the
provision of psychological services, the ownership was acquired
on 23rd October 2003). Corpore Limited (50% ownership, its
principal activity is the provision of vocational rehabilitation
services to the UK market).

Retained earnings attributable to associate
Share of associate’s (loss)/net profit
from ordinary activities before income tax expense
Share of associate’s income tax expense

Dividend received from associate
Write back of Losses - Corpore
Share of associate’s (accumulated losses)/retained profits
at end of financial year
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Consolidated

13.	PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment at cost

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

4,062,602

3,368,352

-

-

(2,633,986)

(1,824,712)

-

-

1,428,616

1,543,640

-

-

Leasehold Improvements at cost

335,001

196,941

-

-

Less Accumulated amortisation

(154,935)

(53,696)

-

-

180,066

143,245

567,386

1,136,350

-

-

(567,386)

(424,214)

-

-

-

712,136

-

-

1,608,682

2,399,021

-

-

Less Accumulated depreciation

Leased plant & equipment at cost
Less Accumulated depreciation

Total written down value

-

Movements in Carrying Amounts
Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial year.
Plant and equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of the year

1,543,640

665,682

-

-

Additions

239,341

1,053,977

-

-

Disposals

(114,055)

(63,149)

-

-

-

642,294

-

-

Additions through acquisition of entity

568,964

-

-

-

Depreciation

(809,274)

(755,164)

-

-

Carrying amount at end of year

1,428,616

1,543,640

-

-

Transfer in from leased plant and equipment

Leased plant and equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of the year

712,136

407,503

-

-

Additions

-

22,201

-

-

Disposals

-

(15,908)

-

-

Additions through acquisition of entity

-

458,586

-

-

Transfer to plant and equipment

(568,964)

-

-

-

Depreciation

(143,172)

(160,246)

-

-

-

712,136

-

-

Carrying amount at beginning of the year

143,245

15,363

-

-

Additions

138,060

6,017

-

-

-

168,760

-

-

(101,239)

(46,895)

-

-

180,066

143,245

-

-

Carrying amount at end of year

Leasehold improvements

Additions through acquisition of entity
Amortisation
Carrying amount at end of year
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Consolidated

14.	INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill on Consolidation

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

22,289,039

22,289,039

-

-

(608,648)

(608,648)

-

-

Less write-down to recoverable amount

(8,805,764)

(8,805,764)

-

-

Less impairment

(6,352,000)

(6,352,000)

-

-

6,522,627

6,522,627

-

-

Less Accumulated amortisation

Goodwill at recoverable amount

Goodwill on consolidation from the investments in subsidiaries has been written down to its recoverable amount based on forecast discounted cash flows for the
consolidated entity. Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according to business segment. Only one CGU has been identified.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five year period. Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate of 5%. The growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates. The discount rate used in the calculation is 11.5%.

15.	TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CURRENT)
Trade creditors
Employee benefits
Other creditors and accruals

Deferred Consideration

413,280

553,946

-

-

901,609

1,334,558

-

-

2,016,699

2,848,847

-

1,605,114

3,331,588

4,737,351

-

1,605,114

-

1,374,702

-

-

199,503

200,845

-

-

199,503

200,845

-

-

16.	PROVISIONS (NON CURRENT)
Non-Current
Employee benefits

17. BORROWINGS (CURRENT AND NON CURRENT)
Current - secured
853,626

1,756,831

-

-

Bank loans

Bank overdrafts

-

1,000,000

-

-

Lease liability (note 21)

-

660,720

-

-

Deferred Consideration

-

500,000

-

-

853,626

3,917,551

-

-

-

296,475

-

-

-

296,475

-

-

Non-Current - secured
Lease liability (note 21)
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Consolidated

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

(a)	Total current and
non-current secured liabilities:
	Bank overdrafts

853,626

1,756,831

-

-

	Bank loans

-

1,000,000

-

-

	Lease liability

-

957,195

-

-

	Deferred Consideration

-

500,000

-

-

853,626

4,214,026

-

-

13,572,833

16,281,172

11,894,479

9,557,949

13,572,833

16,281,172

11,894,479

9,557,949

(b)	The carrying amounts of assets
pledged as security are:
Floating charge over assets, including investments at market value
	Total assets pledged as security

(C)	The lease liabilities of the parent and subsidiaries were secured by a first mortgage over the specified leased goods of subsidiaries.
(D)	At 30 June 2005 the bank loans were secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the parent entity and its subsidiaries.
(E) Refer to note 29 for details of banking facilities.
(F) Refer to note 28 for details of interest rate exposures, fair values, on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet liabilities.

18.	CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
a)	Issued and paid up capital
2006:

50,416,310 ordinary shares

(2005:

39,409,224 ordinary shares)

37,261,453

32,211,383

37,261,453

2006
Number of Shares

32,211,383

2005
$

Number of Shares

$

b) Movements in shares on issue
Beginning of the financial year

39,409,224

32,211,383

Issued in the prior year

33,712,439

26,309,061

5,696,785

6,090,334

Issued during the year:
		

30/6/06 Shares issued Debt to equity conversion ($0.55)

545,455

300,000

-

-

		

13/4/06 Shares issued in payment of share issue costs ($0.55)

950,000

522,500

-

-

		

20/12/05 Shares issued Employee Share Plan ($0.4029)

57,086

23,000

-

-

		

12/10/05 Shares subscription ($0.55)

9,454,545

5,200,000

-

-

-

(995,430)

-

(188,012)

50,416,310

37,261,453

39,409,224

32,211,383

Less share issue costs

End of the financial year
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c) Share based options and performance rights
	Options granted over ordinary shares (these options have no voting or dividend rights until exercised):
	As at 30 June 2006 there were 150,000 unlisted options on issue and 1,000,000 performance rights issued to directors.
(i) Performance Rights
		Performance rights were granted under the Executive Option and Performance Rights Plan (‘Plan’) which was approved by shareholders at the 2005
Annual General Meeting. The Plan allows the Company to grant options or rights to selected key employees to acquire ordinary shares in the Company.
Participants are required to satisfy performance and service conditions at the time of the offer.
		The exercise price for performance rights is nil.
		

Rights cannot be transferred and will not be quoted on the ASX.

		A right may only be exercised by a date determined by the Board and will lapse if not exercised at a date determined by the Board not exceeding 10 years,
subject to applicable performance hurdles and other restrictions set in the offer letter. An unexpired option or right will also lapse on a date six months
after a participant dies, retires, is made redundant or becomes disabled, or the date one month after the participant ceases to be employed by the Konekt
group for any other reason.
		

Service Conditions
TrancheNumber

% Available

First Exercise Date

Last Exercise Date

Number of Rights

1

25

17 May 2007

17 May 2011

250,000

2

25

17 May 2008

17 May 2011

250,000

3

25

17 May 2009

17 May 2011

250,000

4

25

17 May 2010

17 May 2011

250,000

100.00

1,000,000

		
Performance Conditions
		Performance conditions are deemed to be an essential component of all senior executive equity incentives. The proposed issue of rights is designed to
provide both motivation to perform and to provide retention incentive. There are two (2) separate performance conditions to be applied to the rights, for
50% of the Tranche weightings, as follows:
Performance Condition 1 – 50% of the Tranche weighting – Earnings per Share (expressed in cps)
Tranche

Performance Condition

Threshold (25% vests)
3

Budget (50% vests)
4

Target (100% vests)

1

EPS for FYE 30/6/2006 equals or exceeds

6

2

EPS for FYE 30/6/2007 equals or exceeds

3.3

4.4

6.6

3

EPS for FYE 30/6/2008 equals or exceeds

3.63

4.84

7.32

4

EPS for FYE 30/6/2009 equals or exceeds

3.993

5.324

8.052

13.923 cps

18.564 cps

27.972 cps

	EPS means Earnings Per Share in cents per share (“cps”). EPS is defined as basic earnings per shares (after tax) before any goodwill and/or amortisation,
adjusted for significant items (as noted in the Company’s financial statements), goodwill write-offs which represent more than 5% of the group’s pre-tax profit
for the year; and material capital restructurings that have occurred over the relevant period, as determined by the Board.
	All rights are available up to the last performance measurement date. That is, if a prior year threshold, budget or target is not met, the rights are still available
but prior year rights must then meet a cumulative EPS measure, that is, the sum of the relevant years.
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Performance Condition 2 – 50% of the Tranche weighting – Share price escalator
Performance Condition

Threshold (25% vests)

Budget (50% vests)

Target (100% vests)

1

Share Price at 30/9/2006 equals or exceeds (1)

$0.70

$1.00

$1.50

2

Share Price at 30/9/2007 equals or exceeds (1)

$0.80

$1.30

$2.00

3

Share Price at 30/9/2008 equals or exceeds (1)

$1.00

$1.60

$2.50

4

Share Price at 30/9/2009 equals or exceeds (1)

$1.20

$1.80

$2.60

(1) On a five day volume weighted average basis at that date or up to the last available date.
	All rights are available up to the last performance measurement date. That is, if a prior year threshold, budget or target is not met, the rights are still available
but prior year rights must then meet the next year threshold, budget or target level. For example, if as at 30th September 2006, the share price is below $0.70,
none of the rights would vest, none would be forfeited, but all would then be subject to the higher Tranche 2 hurdle, and so on.
		
General Conditions
		Exercise Rights:		Subject to any adjustments in accordance with the Plan Rules and/or the ASX Listing Rules, each Performance Right entitles the
holder to acquire one (1) ordinary share in the capital of the Company on exercise of the Performance Right.
		Exercise Parcels:		Exercise may be in whole or in part, as long as they are in marketable parcels of no less than $5,000.00 worth of shares.
		Timing of Exercises: Performance Rights, once vested, may be exercised only in accordance with any administrative restrictions as set out in the Plan.
		Other Conditions:
Unless the Board of the Company decides otherwise, the Performance Rights being offered will expire on the earlier of:
							
							
							

a) the Last Exercise Date (per above); or
b)	a day at the determination of the Board in accordance with the Plan Rules if the participant ceases to be an employee of the
Company; or
c) the day on which a participant defaults hereunder.

		Details of performance rights issued in the Company under the Plan to selected participants are set out below.

Name

		

Number of performance rights
granted during the year

Number of performance rights
vested during the year

2006

2005

2006

2006

Martin Spry

200,000

0

0

0

Carl Woodbridge

800,000

0

0

0

Shareholder approval for the issue of performance rights to the above participants was obtained under Listing Rule 10.14.

(ii) Options
		150,000 Options were issued on 27 February 2006. These options will expire three years from date of issue if not exercised. The exercise price per option
is $0.55.

d) 	Obligations to issue ordinary shares
	There are Class B incentive shares as detailed below:
	There are 30 Class B Converting shares on issue. The Class B Shares convert into ordinary shares (with each class B converting using a formula of 500,000 /
weighted average price of the company’s shares traded on the ASX on the 10 days prior to conversion) if the group achieves earnings before interest and tax
(EBIT) of $20,000,000 in any financial year up to and including 30 June 2008.

e)	Restricted Securities
	There are no restricted securities at the date of this report.

f)	Terms and conditions of contributed equity
	Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the company in proportion to the number of shares held.
	At shareholders’ meetings each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each shareholder has a vote on a show of hands.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
Consolidated Entity

19 	RESERVES
Option-based payments reserve

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

$

$

$

$

26,480

-

Performance rights expense
Balance 30 June

26,480

-

-

-

-

-

18,159

-

18,159

-

8,321

-

8,321

-

26,480

-

26,480

-

Balance 1 July
Options expense

Parent Entity

(i) The option based payments reserve is used to recognise the fair
value of options issued but not exercised.

Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

20.	ACCUMULATED LOSSES

$

$

$

$

Balance at the beginning of the year

(26,457,135)

(25,631,871)

(24,258,548)

(19,949,442)

Loss from ordinary activities after tax

(1,468,340)

(825,264)

(1,134,906)

(4,309,106)

(174,342)

-

-

-

(28,099,817)

(26,457,135)

(25,393,454)

(24,258,548)

Within one year

1,872,980

1,661,231

-

-

One year or later but not later than five years

3,022,652

1,361,603

-

-

4,895,632

3,022,834

-

-

Adjust c/fwd losses for pre-acquisition costs

Balance at the end of the year

21.	CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS
Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
Future operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the
financial statements and payable:

The consolidated entity leases property and motor vehicles under non-cancellable operating leases expiring from one to five years. Leases generally provide the
consolidated entity with a right of renewal at which time all terms are renegotiated.
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Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

Finance lease payment commitments
Finance lease commitments are payable as follows:
Within one year

-

742,104

-

-

One year or later but not later than five years

-

301,516

-

-

-

1,043,620

-

-

Less: Future lease finance charges

-

(86,425)

-

-

Total Lease Liability

-

957,195

-

-

Current (note 17)

-

660,720

-

-

Non-current (note 17)

-

296,475

-

-

Total lease liability

-

957,195

-

-

Lease liabilities provided for in the Financial Statements

The consolidated entity had leased plant and equipment and leasehold improvements under finance leases expiring from one to three years.

22.	CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The directors are not aware of any contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2006.

23. SUPERANNUATION PLANS
The company and its subsidiaries contribute to several defined contribution employee superannuation plans.

Details of contributions to the defined contribution plans during the year and contributions payable at 30 June 2006 are as follows:
Consolidated Entity

Employer contributions to the plans
Employer contributions payable to the plans at balance date

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

1,546,590

1,366,345

-

-

170,577

39,824

-

-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
24. DIRECTORS’ AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
a) Details of Parent Entity Directors and Key Management Personnel
(i) Parent Entity Directors

Position

Period of service

M. Spry

Non Executive Director

Director 29 September 2004 to current

C. Woodbridge

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Director 11 July 2003 to current

P. Landau

Non Executive Director

Director 20 December 2002 to 14 July 2006

P. Molloy

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Director 11 November 2003 to 17 November 2005

A. Baxter

Non Executive Director

Director 19 June 2006 to current

S. Craig

Non Executive Director

Director 19 June 2006 to current

M. Lloyd-Jones

Non Executive Director

Director 19 June 2006 to current

P. Molloy

Chief Financial Officer

18 November 2005 to 28 July 2006

B. Gunton

Chief Operating Officer

4 January 2005 to 31 January 2006

(ii) Key Management Personnel

b)	Remuneration of Parent Entity Directors and Key Management Personnel
(i) Remuneration Policy
		The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the directors and the
Executive team. The Remuneration Committee assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments of such officers on a periodic basis
by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high
quality Board and Executive team. Such officers are given the opportunity to receive their base emolument in a variety of forms including cash and fringe
benefits such as motor vehicles and expense payment plans. It is intended that the manner of payment chosen will be optimal for the recipient without
creating undue administration for the company.
		To assist in achieving these objectives, the Remuneration Committee links the nature and amount of executive directors’ and officers’ emoluments to the
company’s financial and operational performance.
ii)

Service agreements

		Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Managing Director, Finance Director and Key Management Personnel are formalised in service
agreements. Each of these provides for a performance related cash bonus and superannuation. Other major provisions of the agreements relating to
remuneration are set out below:
		

C. WOODBRIDGE – Managing Director

		
		

•	Term of agreement 3 years commencing 22 April 2004.
•	Base salary, including superannuation, amounting to $230,000 to be reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee and increased to $270,000
from 1 September 2004.
•	Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, is equal to the base salary for the remaining
term of the agreement.

		

		The following persons also had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly during
the financial year
		

P. MOLLOY – Chief Financial Officer

		
		

•	Term of agreement 3 years commencing 19 March 2004.
•	Base salary, including superannuation, amounting to $177,000 to be reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee and increased to $225,000
from 28 February 2005.
•	Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, is equal to the base salary for the remaining
term of the agreement.

		

		

B. GUNTON – Chief Operating Officer

		
		

•	Term of agreement 3 years commencing 4 January 2005.
•	Base salary, including superannuation, for the first six months amounting to $137,500 with additional wages payable of $50,000. After the first six
months; base salary, including superannuation will be $200,000 with a bonus payable of up to 30% of base salary for the 2006 year. Said bonus will
be paid based on the operational performance of the company against budgets and business plans.
• Payment of termination benefit in accordance with legislation.
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(iii) Remuneration of Parent Entity Directors and Key Management Personnel
Primary Benefits
Remuneration
& Fees

Cash Bonus

Non Monetary
benefits

Post
Employment

Equity
Compensation

Superannuation

Options

Total

Parent Entity Directors

PETER LANDAU
2006

24,000

-

-

2,160

-

26,160

2005

24,000

-

-

2,160

-

26,160

2006

79,393

-

-

7,145

-

86,538

2005

173,858

-

-

15,553

-

189,411

46,757

-

-

-

-

46,757

8,027

-

-

567

-

8,594

2006

257,233

-

5,679

23,150

6,657

292,719

2005

234,686

-

7,807

20,648

-

263,141

2006

120,000

-

-

-

1,664

121,664

2005

29,002

-

-

-

-

29,002

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2006

480,626

-

5,679

32,455

8,321

527,081

2005

516,330

-

7,807

38,928

-

563,065

PAUL MOLLOY

NORMAN NEWBON
2005

Graham Reynolds
2005

Carl Woodbridge

Martin Spry

Alan Baxter
2006

Stuart Craig
2006

Max Lloyd-Jones
2006
Total Remuneration: Parent Entity Directors
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
Primary Benefits
Remuneration
& Fees

Non Monetary
benefits

Cash Bonus

Post
Employment

Equity
Compensation

Superannuation

Options

Total

Key Management Personnel of the Consolidated Entity

Jan Smithies
2005

198,024

-

-

7,879

-

205,903

2006

170,610

-

-

15,568

-

186,178

2005

123,463

-

-

5,792

-

129,255

134,968

-

-

12,147

-

147,115

Belinda Gunton

Paul Molloy
2006

Total Remuneration: Parent Entity
Directors and Key Management Personnel
2006

786,204

-

5,679

60,170

8,321

860,374

2005

837,817

-

7,807

52,599

-

898,223

c)	Remuneration options: Granted and vested during the year
	There were 1,000,000 remuneration options issued during the year to Mr Spry (200,000) and Mr Woodbridge (800,000). These were all outstanding at year
end. Refer note 18(c) for further details.

d) Shares issued on exercise of remuneration options
	No shares were issued for options exercised.

e)	Option holdings of Parent Entity Directors and Key Management Personnel
	Mr Spry and Mr Woodbridge hold 200,000 and 800,000 performance rights respectively (refer note 18 for details).

f) Shareholdings of Parent Entity Directors and Key Management Personnel
Balance
1 July 2005

Granted as
Remuneration

On Exercise
of Options

Net Change
Other

Balance
30 June 2006

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares

Parent Entity Directors

Martin Spry

100,000

Nil

Nil

150,000

250,000

Carl Woodbridge

746,000

Nil

Nil

Nil

746,000

Peter Landau

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Alan Baxter

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Stuart Craig

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Max Lloyd-Jones

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Belinda Gunton

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Paul Molloy

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

846,000

Nil

Nil

150,000

996,000

Key Management Personnel

Total

	Mr Woodbridge also has a direct interest in 13 Class B Converting Shares. Mr Woodbridge also had a direct interest in 1,506,000 Class A Converting Shares
until all Class A Converting Shares were cancelled under their terms and conditions on 24 August 2006.
	The terms of the Class A and B shares are detailed in note 18(d).
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g)	Other Transactions and Balances with Parent Entity Directors and Key Management Personnel
	There were no other transactions and balances with directors or key management personnel.
Consolidated Entity

i)

Services

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

Corporate website provision performed by IRM Pty Ltd of
which Martin Spry is a director.

15,165

-

15,165

-

Corporate advisory services, including company secretarial
performed by Grange Consulting Group Pty Ltd of which
Peter Landau is a director.

56,435

110,018

56,435

110,018

ii)

Amounts recognised at the reporting date in relation to other transactions:

		There are no other amounts recognised at reporting date in respect of other transactions with directors and key management personnel.
Consolidated Entity

25. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

176,740

155,091

176,740

155,091

2,702

2,664

2,702

2,664

179,442

157,755

179,442

157,755

Amounts received or due and receivable by the auditors for:
- Auditing and reviewing of financial reports
- Other services

26. SEGMENT REPORTING
There is only one primary reporting segment in the Group which is Injury Management.
Secondary Reporting – Geographical
Segment Revenues from External
Customers

Australia
United Kingdom

Carrying Amount of Segment Assets

Acquisitions of plant
and equipment, intangibles and
other non current segment assets

2006

2005

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

$

$

30,191,300

29,252,266

13,132,066

16,103,615

377,401

7,576,453

-

-

440,767

177,557

-

177,557

30,191,300

29,252,266

13,572,833

16,281,172

377,401

7,754,010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
27. SUBSIDIARIES
a) Subsidiaries

Country of Incorporation

Percentage owned 2006

Percentage owned 2005

Australia

-

-

Konekt International Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Konekt Australia Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Industrial Rehabilitation Service Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Konekt Workplace Health Solutions Pty Ltd
(previously Inergise Australia Pty Ltd)

Australia

100%

100%

Parent Entity:
Konekt Limited
Subsidiaries of Konekt Limited:

b) Subsidiaries Acquired
	There were no further acquisitions during the period.

c) Deed of guarantee
	A deed of cross-guarantee between Konekt International Pty Ltd, Konekt Australia Pty Ltd, Industrial Rehabilitation Service Pty Ltd, Konekt Workplace Health
Solutions Pty Ltd and Konekt Limited was enacted during the financial year and relief was obtained from preparing a financial report for Konekt International
Pty Ltd, Konekt Australia Pty Ltd, Industrial Rehabilitation Service Pty Ltd and Konekt Workplace Health Solutions Pty Ltd under ASIC Class Order 98/1418
issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission. Under the deed, Konekt Limited guarantees to support the liabilities and obligations of Konekt
International Pty Ltd, Konekt Australia Pty Ltd, Industrial Rehabilitation Service Pty Ltd, Konekt Workplace Health Solutions Pty Ltd and vice versa. Konekt
International Pty Ltd, Konekt Australia Pty Ltd, Industrial Rehabilitation Service Pty Ltd and Konekt Workplace Health Solutions Pty Ltd are the only parties to
the Deed of Cross Guarantee and are members of the Closed Group.

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE
a)	Off balance sheet derivative instruments
	The consolidated entity does not have any such instruments in place.

b)	Credit risk exposure
	Credit risk is the risk that counter parties to a financial asset will fail to discharge their obligations, causing the consolidated entity to incur a financial loss. The
entity has no significant concentration of credit risk to a group of debtors nor a single debtor.

c) Fair values
	The directors are satisfied that the carrying values of the financial assets and liabilities are the equivalent of the fair value of those items. For the methods of
determining fair value and any significant assumptions, see note 1 to the financial statements.
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d)	Interest rate risk exposure
	The consolidated entities exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s value will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest
rates and the effective weighted average interest rates on classes of financial assets and financial liabilities, is as follows:

30 June 2006

Weighted
average interest
rate

Floating
interest rate

Fixed interest rate
maturing in <1 year

$

$

Fixed interest rate
maturing
in 1 – 5 years
$

Non-interest
bearing
$

Total
$

Financial Assets
Cash assets

1.55%

126,671

-

-

11,663

138,334

-

-

-

4,591,882

4,591,882

Receivables

-

-

-

6,699

6,699

126,671

-

-

4,610,244

4,736,915

853,626

-

-

-

853,626

-

-

-

2,427,711

2,427,711

853,626

-

-

2,427,711

3,281,337

(726,955)

-

-

2,182,533

1,455,578

Other financial assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Bank overdraft

7.7%

Payables
Total Financial Liabilities
Net Financial (Liabilities)/Assets

30 June 2005

Weighted
average interest
rate

Floating
interest rate
$

Fixed interest
rate maturing
in less than
1 year
$

Fixed interest
rate maturing
in 1 – 5 years
$

Non-interest
bearing
$

Total
$

Financial Assets
Cash assets

4.35%

845,894

-

-

2,981

848,875

-

-

-

5,147,102

5,147,102

-

-

-

166,481

166,481

845,894

-

-

5,316,564

6,162,458

Receivables
Other financial assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Bank overdraft
Bank loans

10.20%

1,756,831

-

-

-

1,756,831

6.23%

-

1,000,000

-

-

1,000,000

Payables

-

-

-

3,393,775

3,393,775

Deferred consideration

-

500,000

-

1,374,702

1,874,702

-

660,720

296,475

-

957,195

Total Financial Liabilities

1,756,831

2,160,720

296,475

4,768,477

8,982,503

Net Financial (Liabilities)/Assets

(910,937)

(2,160,720)

(296,475)

548,087

(2,820,045)

Lease Liabilities

7.96%

No financial assets or liabilities are readily tradable on organised markets.
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Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

(1,468,340)

(825,264)

(1,134,906)

(4,309,106)

1,053,685

962,305

-

-

26,480

-

26,480

-

Write down of investments to recoverable amount

-

-

-

4,295,184

Write down of receivables from subsidiaries to recoverable amount

-

-

1,955,117

-

(401,633)

1,192,718

(239,003)

1,716

491,457

(375,836)

-

(213,069)

-

-

239,002

355,114

(298,351)

953,923

846,690

129,839

29.	CASH FLOW INFORMATION
a)	Reconciliation of the loss from ordinary activities
after income tax to the net cash flows from operations:
Operating loss after income tax

Non cash items
Depreciation
Share option payments expense

Changes in assets and liabilities
Movement in debtors and creditors
Movement in other assets
Movement in other liabilities

Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities

Consolidated Entity

b)	Reconciliation of Cash

Parent Entity

2006

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

Cash balance comprises:
Cash at bank

126,671

Cash on hand
Deposits at call

833,078

-

-

11,663

2,981

-

-

-

12,816

-

-

138,334

848,875

-

-

(853,626)

-

-

-

Cash included in interest bearing liabilities

(853,626)

(1,756,831)

-

-

Cash at end of financial year

(715,292)

(907,956)

-

-

Cash Assets (note 8)
Debt Financing Facility
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c)	Acquisition of Entities
During the prior year 100% of the subsidiaries Industrial Rehabilitation Service Pty Ltd and Inergise Australia Pty Ltd were acquired. Details of these transaction are:
Purchase consideration :
Cash consideration

-

6,316,017

-

6,316,017

Amount due under contract of sale

-

1,250,000

-

1,250,000

-

7,566,017

-

7,566,017

Receivables

-

2,832,940

-

2,832,940

Assets and liabilities held at acquisition date:

Other Assets

-

757,102

-

757,102

Plant and equipment

-

1,269,639

-

1,269,639

Vendor loans (current liabilities)

-

(2,002,045)

-

(2,002,045)

-

2,857,636

-

2,857,636

-

4,708,381

-

4,708,381

-

7,566,017

-

7,566,017

Goodwill on consolidation

Consolidated Entity

e)	Credit Standby Arrangements
and finance facilities with banks
Credit facility
Amount utilised
Unused credit facility

Parent Entity

2005

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

4,210,448

5,250,000

-

-

(1,133,454)

(4,214,026)

-

-

3,076,994

1,035,974

-

-

f) Banking Facilities
Debt Finance Facility
$5,000,000 variable interest rate facility.					
Lease Agreement
$1,000,000 lease agreement .		
Guarantee facility
$500,000 guarantee facility.			
	Finance will be provided under these facilities provided the company and the consolidated entity have not breached any borrowing requirements and the
required financial covenants are met. At 30 June 2006, the covenants were capital adequacy of 40% and EBITDA for the quarter ended 30 June of 2x financial
charges for that quarter. The covenant relating to capital adequacy was waived by the bank for the quarter ended 30 June 2006.

g)	Non-cash financing and investing activities
	During the year the Group issued 950,000 shares in settlement of $522,500 of share issue expenses. Refer to note 18 for more details.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
30.	EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Employees’ Share Option Arrangement
The Konekt Limited Employee Share Option Plan was approved by the Board to provide incentives for employees by taking up ordinary shares. The options were
exercisable on or before 30 June 2005 at $10.00 per ordinary share, the options were not exercised during the financial year and have lapsed.

31. MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
There are no matters or circumstances that have arisen since 30 June 2006 that have significantly affected, or may significantly affect:
(a) the Group’s operations in future financial years, or
(b) the results of those operations in future financial years, or
(c) the Group’s state of affairs in future financial years.
Consolidated Entity

32.	RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parent Entity

2005

2005

2006

2005

$

$

$

$

Transactions with related parties, other than those dealt with elsewhere in the
Financial Statements:
Transactions between parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no
more favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

a) Transaction with related parties:
i)	Interest received from subsidiary

-

-

1,043,375

421,314

ii)	Loan to subsidiary

-

-

8,192,498

6,071,028

The loan accrues interest based on the bank interest.There are no fixed terms
of repayment.

33. explanation of transition to AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO IFRS
a)	AASB Transitional Exemptions
	The Group has elected to use the following transitional exemptions allowed by AASB 1: First time adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards.
Exemption from requirements to restate financial instruments comparatives under AASB 132 and AASB 139
	The Group has elected to apply the exemption available in AASB 1 to restate comparatives for financial instruments. This means that the transition date for
financial instruments becomes 1 July 2005 instead of 1 July 2004.
Business Combinations
	AASB 3: Business Combinations has not been applied retrospectively to business combinations that were affected prior to transition date.
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b)	Reconciliation of total equity presented under AGAAP to that under AIFRS
	The impact of adopting AIFRS on the total equity as reported under Australian Standards applicable before 1 January 2005 (“AGAAP”) is as follows:
Consolidated Entity

Notes

Parent Entity

30-Jun-05

1-Jul-04

30-Jun-05

1-Jul-04

$

$

$

$

11,591,397

7,029,190

7,952,835

6,359,619

Reversal of goodwill amortisation

(e)

514,851

-

-

-

Impairment of assets

(f)

(6,352,000)

(6,352,000)

-

-

5,754,248

677,190

7,952,835

6,359,619

Total equity under AGAAP

Total equity under AIFRS

c)	Reconciliation of Accumulated Losses presented under AGAAP to that under AIFRS
	The impact of adopting AIFRS on the accumulated losses as reported under Australian Standards applicable before 1 January 2005 (“AGAAP”) is as follows:
Consolidated Entity

Notes
Accumulated losses under AGAAP
Reversal of goodwill amortisation

(e)

Impairment of assets

(f)

Accumulated losses under AIFRS

Parent Entity

30-Jun-05

1-Jul-04

30-Jun-05

1-Jul-04

$

$

$

$

(20,619,986)

(19,279,871)

(24,258,548)

(19,949,442)

514,851

-

-

-

(6,352,000)

(6,352,000)

-

-

(26,457,135)

(25,631,871)

(24,258,548)

(19,949,442)

d)	Reconciliation of loss after tax presented under AGAAP to that under AIFRS
	The impact of adopting AIFRS on the loss as reported under Australian Standards applicable before 1 January 2005 (“AGAAP”) is as follows:
Consolidated Entity

Notes
Loss after tax as previously reported
Reversal of goodwill amortisation

Year ended
30 Jun 05
$’000
(1,340,115)

(e)

Loss after tax under AIFRS

Parent Entity
Year ended
30 Jun 05
$’000
(4,309,106)

514,851

-

(825,264)

(4,309,106)

E)	Goodwill was amortised under AGAAP but is no longer amortised under AASB 3: Business Combinations. This results in a positive impact on results and
accumulated losses for the comparative AIFRS period.

F)	Under AGAAP, the recoverable amounts of assets were not determined on the basis of discounted cash flows. Under AASB 136: Impairment of Assets, the
recoverable amount is determined as the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use (based on discounted cash flows).
	The requirement to discount cash flows when determining value in use has resulted in an initial transitional impairment write-down of $6,352,000 on goodwill,
assuming a 15% discount rate. Goodwill was amortised under AGAAP but is no longer amortised under AASB 3: Business Combinations. This results in a
positive impact on results and accumulated losses for the comparative AIFRS period.
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
The directors of Konekt Limited declare that:
1.	The Financial Statements, comprising the Income Statements, Balance Sheets, Cash Flow Statements, Statements of Changes in Equity and accompanying
notes, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and:
(a) comply with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements; and
(b)	give a true and fair view of the company and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2006 and of its performance for the year ended on that date.
2.	In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable; and
3.	The audited remuneration disclosures included in the director’s report comply with AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
The directors have been given the declaration by the Chief Executive Officer required by Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

MARTIN SPRY
Chairman

28 September 2006
Sydney, New South Wales
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Scope
The Financial Report and Directors’ Responsibility
The financial report comprises the balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement, statement of changes in equity, accompanying notes to the financial
statements, and the directors’ declaration for both Konekt Limited (the company) and the consolidated entity, for the year ended 30 June 2006. The consolidated
entity comprises both the company and the entities it controlled during that year.
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001. This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error,
and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach
We have conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members of the company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced
by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than
conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected.
We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including
compliance with Accounting Standards and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the
company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position, and of their performance as represented by the results of their operations and cash flows.
We performed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:
•
•

examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial report, and
assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our
audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal controls.

Independence
In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001
The independence declaration to the directors in accordance with section307C would be in the same terms if it had been given at the date of this report.

Audit Opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of Konekt Limited is in accordance with:
a)	The Corporations Act 2001, including:
		
(i)	giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2006 and of their performance for the year ended
on that date; and
		
(ii) complying with the Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
b)

other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

BDO														I K fergusson
Chartered Accountants										
Partner
Dated Sydney, this 28th day of September 2006
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Auditors Independence declaration
As lead auditor for the audit of Konekt Limited and the consolidated entity for the year ended 30 June 2006, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief
there have been:
a)
b)

no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

BDO														
Chartered Accountants										

I K fergusson
Partner

Dated Sydney, this 28th day of September 2006
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ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Limited and not shown elsewhere in this report is as follows. The information is current as at 4
September 2006.

(a) Distribution of equity securities
	The number of shareholders, by size of holding, in each class of share is:

Ordinary Shares
No. of
Holders
1 – 1,000

483

1,001 – 5,000
5,001 – 10,000
10,001 – 100,000
100,001 and over

No. of
Shares

Class B Shares
No. of
Holders

Options
No. of
Holders

No. of
Shares

Performance Rights

No. of
Options

No. of
Holders

No. of
Rights

181,749

3

30

-

-

-

-

320

820,885

-

-

-

-

-

-

145

1,108,866

-

-

-

-

-

-

247

7,935,579

-

-

-

-

-

-

38

40,369,231

-

-

1

150,000

2

1,000,000

1,233

50,416,310

3

30

1

150,000

2

1,000,000

552

265,879

-

-

-

-

-

-

The number of
shareholders holding
less than a marketable
parcel of shares are:

(b)	Twenty largest shareholders – ordinary shares quoted on the ASX
	The names of the twenty largest holders of ordinary shares quoted on the ASX as at 4 September 2006 are:
Listed ordinary shares
Number of
Shares Held

% Held

1.

ANZ Nominees Limited

6,444,163

12.78

2.

GIO General Limited

5,760,000

11.42

3.

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited

5,437,685

10.79

4.

INVIA Custodian Pty Limited (Thirty Five Account)

4,024,363

7.98

5.

Australian Executor Trustees Limited

2,829,427

5.61

6.

Queensland Investment Corporation

2,017,090

4.00

7.

JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited

1,511,900

3.00

8.

INVIA Custodian Pty Limited (Black Account)

1,412,000

2.80

9.

National Nominees Limited

1,306,541

2.59

10.

Mr Martinus Coolen

1,217,759

2.42

11.

Prorehab Pty Limited

850,225

1.69

12.

Gwynvill Trading Pty Limited

815,065

1.62

13.

Equity Trustees Limited

732,585

1.45

14.

FNL Investments Pty Limited

545,455

1.08

15.

Mr Mark Ashley Ewart

500,000

0.99

16.

Dr Jon Berrick

400,000

0.79

17.

FNL Investments Pty Limited

368,909

0.73

18.

Carl Woodbridge

351,000

0.70

19.

Mrs Jean Ewart

300,000

0.60

20.

Karen Woodbridge

295,000

0.59

Total ordinary shares quoted on ASX held by the top 20 holders

37,119,167

73.63

Total ordinary shares quoted on ASX

50,416,310

100.00
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ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (cont’d)
(c) Unquoted Securities
	There were 150,000 unquoted options as at 30 June 2006.

Converting Shares
30

Class B Converting Shares (3 shareholders)

	The Class B Shares convert into ordinary shares (with each class B converting using a formula of 500,000/ weighted average price of the Company’s shares
traded on the ASX on the 10 days prior to conversion) if the group achieves earnings before interest and Tax (EBIT) of $20,000,000 in any financial year up to
and including 30 June 2008.
	The following hold more than 20% of the Unquoted Converting Shares:

		
		

Class B
Carl Woodbridge					
Pine Valley Enterprises Pty Ltd		

13 (43.3%)
13 (43.3%)

(d) Substantial Shareholders
	The names of substantial shareholders who have notified the Company in accordance with section 671B of the Corporations Act 2001 are:
No. of shares

% Held

ANZ Nominees Limited

6,444,163

12.78

GIO General Limited

5,760,000

11.42

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited

5,437,685

10.79

INVIA Custodian Pty Limited (Thirty Five Account)

4,024,363

7.98

Australian Executor Trustees Limited

2,829,427

5.61

(g) Other Disclosures
(i)	The name of the Company secretary is Miss Deahne Zanatta (LLB, B Comm).
(ii)	The address of the principal registered office in Australia is Level 10, 97-99 Bathurst Street, Sydney NSW 2000.
(iii) Registers of securities are held at the following addresses:
		
Computershare Investor Services
		Level 2 Reserve Bank Building
		
45 St Georges Terrace
		
Perth WA 6000
		
Konekt Limited
		Level 10, 97-99 Bathurst Street
		
Sydney NSW 2000
(iv) Stock Exchange Listing
		
Quotation has been granted for all the ordinary shares of the Company on all Member Exchanges of the Australian Stock Exchange Limited.
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